Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee Member Induction

Tuesday 22 June 2021 at 10.00 am

A member induction session via webex
The meeting will be available to view by YouTube of the Gloucestershire County Council
Website.

AGENDA

1

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

Chair

The Chairman to welcome everyone to the meeting.
2

TERMS OF REFERENCE (Pages 1 - 2)
To note the Terms of Reference of the Adult Social Care and
Communities Scrutiny Committee (attached).

3

SCOPE OF THE COMMITTEE
To receive information on the scope of the committee
a)

PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT (Pages 3 - 22)
A report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public
Health.

b)

ADULT SOCIAL CARE REPORT (Pages 23 - 30)
A report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public
Health.

c)

COMMUNITY SAFETY REPORT (Pages 31 - 34)

Democratic
Services

Directors/Lead
Officers

Professor Sarah
Scott

Professor Sarah
Scott

Mark Preece

A report from the Interim Chief Fire Officer
d)

COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE REPORT (Pages 35 - 44)
A presentation from the Executive Director of Economy , Environment
and Infrastructure.

Date Published:17 June 2021

Colin Chick

4

IMPACT OF COVID-19 (Pages 45 - 58)

Siobhan Farmer

An overview of the impact of Covid-19 and the response to the pandemic
in Gloucestershire.
5

PERFORMANCE REPORTING (Pages 59 - 68)
a) To receive information on the process of considering performance
reports at scrutiny meetings
b) To note the Quarter 3 Performance Report (Directors and Lead
Officers to respond to questions)

6

WORK PLANNING

Performance
Team
Directors/Lead
Officers

Chair

The Chair to outline the process of suggesting items for consideration at
future meetings
6 July 2021
7 September 2021
9 November 2021
Membership – Cllr Stephen Hirst (Chair), Cllr Alastair Chambers, Cllr Cate Cody,
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Lisa Spivey, Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, Cllr Suzanne Williams,
Cllr Terry Hale and Cllr Steve Robinson
(a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring
Officer/Head of Strategic Planning, Performance & Change.  01452 328506 e-mail:
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact: Jo Moore, Senior Democratic Services Adviser :01452
324196/fax: 425240/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk
Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements
ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to
Shire Hall in Westgate Street. Please remain there and await further instructions.

Agenda Item 2

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
TERMS OF REFERENCE (2021)
Adult Social Care and
Communities Scrutiny
Committee

1. Carry out the scrutiny functions of the County Council
delivering the roles set out in Article 8 of the Constitution
in the context of all matters relating to:
 adults single programme
 services for vulnerable people including adult
safeguarding
 public health
 community development (recognising that other
committees cover aspects of this area)
 residential and nursing care
 road safety
 parking
 emergency management
 trading standards
 libraries and registration service
 coroners
2. Scrutinise the actions and decisions of the responsible
authorities under Section 5 of the Crime and Disorder Act
1998 in relation to their crime and disorder functions.

Page 1

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3a
Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee Induction
Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health
22nd June 2021 – Public Health Report

Introduction
‘Helping to make Gloucestershire a place where everyone can be healthy,
feel safe, and flourish’
The Health and Social Care Act (2012)1 conferred statutory duties on local
authorities to promote the health of their population and gave them responsibility for
commissioning specific public health services, supported by a ring-fenced grant,
taking effect in 2013. This gave an opportunity for public health teams to influence
and support wider local government decisions that impact the public’s health, given
that much of what determines health – including good-quality homes, access to
stable and rewarding work, safe and secure streets and a health promoting
environment – are influenced more strongly by local government. This was
extended to include responsibilities for 0-5 year olds (health visiting) in 2015.
Who We Are
In 2016, Gloucestershire County Council formed “Commissioning Hubs”: public
health was aligned with commissioning of support services for people in vulnerable
circumstances, to become the Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities (PWC) Hub.
•

PWC is a team of over 60 individuals, including public health consultants and
commissioning leads across a number of portfolio areas.
• A budget of over £35 million (exc. COVID funding) – the majority of which is from
the ring-fenced public health grant.
• Recently, this includes the development and delivery of the COVID -19 Local
Outbreak management Plan (LOMP) and a response function delivered by Health
Protection Practitioners. There is an additional c. £20 million funding associated
with this Plan which is described in a separate paper for ASC Scrutiny
Committee.
Needs Analysis: the Gloucestershire Picture
The Health and Social Care Act (2012)1 aboveintroduced duties and powers for newly
formed Health and Wellbeing Boards. This included mandating a Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment (JSNA) and Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS). Their
purpose is to improve the health and wellbeing of the local community and reduce
health inequalities by understanding the local picture and what health needs exist.
The Gloucestershire JSNA can be found on the ‘Inform Gloucestershire’ website
along with a wide range of data about our population and county. It tells us that
overall Gloucestershire is one of the healthiest counties in England. Health
1

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/7/contents/enacted

1

Page 3

outcomes are above the national average and deaths from the major diseases like
cancer, heart disease and strokes are below the national average and falling. The
Public Health England ‘Fingertips’ website is a further excellent source of health and
wellbeing data to help inform local policy and commissioning Appendix 1 shows the
most recent Public Health England Health Profile for Gloucestershire.
The picture in Gloucestershire is far from perfect.
There are areas of
Gloucestershire where residents experience significantly poorer health than the
England average. Additionally, although life expectancy at 65 years of age is better
in Gloucestershire compared to England overall, it is not improving in line with the
national trends for life expectancy. In addition, the age to which men in
Gloucestershire can expect to live with good health (known as ‘healthy life
expectancy’) has been declining since 2010. This, coupled with the fact we have an
ageing population, presents one of our greatest challenges.
The three leading causes of death in Gloucestershire are cancer (28.6%), circulatory
disease (24.0%) and respiratory disease (13.2%). Yet, there are differences across
the districts e.g. Tewkesbury has the highest cancer mortality rate, Cheltenham the
highest circulatory disease mortality rate and Gloucester, the highest rate for
respiratory deaths (taking account of the age differences in each area).
Lifestyle factors such as smoking, poor nutrition, physical inactivity and alcohol
misuse are important contributors to most preventable diseases. Unless we take
early action create the conditions needed for individuals, families and communities to
take steps to improve their own health and wellbeing now, we will not be able to
resource the increases in people with ongoing care needs in the future.
Prevention, Health Inequalities and the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy
Health inequalities are the ‘avoidable and unfair differences in people’s health across
different population groups’ which are a result of social inequalities ‘in the conditions
in which people are born, grow, live, work and age’2.
Health inequalities have been documented between population groups across at
least four dimensions, with people often falling into more than one category.
• Socio-economic status and deprivation: e.g. unemployed, low income, people
living in deprived areas (e.g. poor housing, poor education and/or
unemployment).
• Protected characteristics: e.g. age, sex, race, sexual orientation, disability
• Vulnerable groups or ‘inclusion health’ groups: e.g. vulnerable migrants; Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller communities; rough sleepers and homeless
• Geography: e.g. urban, rural3.
The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2019-2030) (JHWS) is the key strategic
driver for the work on prevention and health inequalities in Gloucestershire.
Alongside this the NHS Long Term PlanError! Bookmark not defined. (LTP)
provides the overarching framework for the work of the Integrated Care System
(ICS) on prevention and health inequalities. Both Health and Wellbeing and ICS
Boards have committed to embedding action on health inequalities across their
strategic priorities. COVID-19 has further exposed and amplified the health
Marmot, M. et al (2010) Fair Society, Healthy Lives. www.instituteofhealthequity.org/resources-reports/fair-society-healthylives-themarmot-review/fair-society-healthy-lives-full-report-pdf.pdf
3 https://www.england.nhs.uk/ltphimenu/definitions-for-health-inequalities/
2

2

Page 4

inequalities that already existed in the country. It has presented a new imperative for
effective action to reduce health inequalities – and an opportunity to ‘build back
fairer4’.
Whilst some of this work has been progressed during the pandemic, the main focus
has been on the immediate needs of vulnerable groups e.g. through the work of
community resilience, homelessness and mental health groups; and on supporting
equitable uptake of COVID-19 vaccinations across the population; both critical for
helping to mitigate against COVID-19 related health inequalities and protecting the
wider community from the virus. In the wake of Covid next priorities will be to
refocus our efforts in the light of our learning from the pandemic and ensure we use
this opportunity to create a coherent ‘whole system’ approach to deliver long- term
sustainable change.
Strategic and Service Drivers for the Hub
The work of the Hub is driven by national and local strategic drivers (Appendix II) as
well as intelligence on the health and wellbeing of our population.
Our Approach
We work across GCC and the wider system (health, social care, housing, criminal
justice, voluntary sector, communities and partners) to influence and enable
colleagues, partners and communities to embed prevention, early intervention and
self-care to improve health and wellbeing, and manage demand for services.
Learning from experience and promoting evidence-based change, we give equal
weight to physical and mental health and focus our resources where the
need/capacity to benefit is greatest to: address avoidable health inequalities; prevent
health, social care and housing crises; reduce the risk of harm and support the most
vulnerable.
We take a strengths-based approach: collaborating with communities and other
stakeholders to help build community capacity, develop community safeguarding and
resilience, and make the most of all of Gloucestershire’s assets. Creative
commissioning and partnership working enable individuals and communities to act
for themselves; building confidence, aspiration and resilience. By working to tackle
the root causes of problems e.g. the wider determinants of health, we can develop
more sustainable solutions to reducing health inequalities.
What We Do
The Local Government Association has identified that investment in public health
leads to reduced pressure on national and local government and the NHS, saving
money that can be further invested in prevention and early intervention. This, in turn,
through improved health and wellbeing and health equality, leads to further
reductions in pressure on care services and wider economic benefits and most
importantly, as a happy and healthier population.

4

Stansfield J, South J, Mapplethorpe T. What are the elements of a whole system approach to community-centred public
health? A qualitative study with public health leaders in England’s local authority areas. BMJ Open 2020;10:e036044.
doi:10.1136/ bmjopen-2019-036044

3

Page 5

Budget
In 2021/22, the public health grant allocation for Gloucestershire is £24,572,514.
The allocation is based on a national formula linked to health inequality and health
need. The Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities Hub also holds £10.105m
commissioning budget for people in vulnerable circumstances and wider hub
activities.
The public health grant is spent on activities whose primary purpose is to positively
impact on the health and wellbeing of the local population, with the aim of reducing
health inequalities in local communities.
During 2020/21 additional grants were received to fund new responsibilities for test
and trace activities in response to the COVID-19 pandemic with £2.221m being
received to fund the Local Management Outbreak Plan and further c.£20 million
funding being announced so far by the DHSC to support proactive containment and
intervention measures (see separate paper).
Mandated Functions
Gloucestershire County Council is required to deliver a number of mandated
functions:
• appropriate access to sexual health services
• health protection assurance functions delegated from the Secretary of State
• ensuring NHS commissioners receive population public health advice (CCG core
offer)
• the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) through which reception
and year six school children are weighed and measured each year to track
obesity rates within the population
• ensuring those eligible are invited to receive an NHS Health Check; a
cardiovascular risk assessment for 40-74 year olds without pre-existing
conditions
• five mandated points of contact through the health visiting (0-5) service
The conditions of the public health grant also identify further requirements, such as
improving outcomes from drug and alcohol treatment services and oral health
promotion. We also commission services for those who have poor life experiences,
creating vulnerabilities from which they may or may not recover. The gap in living
well, between them and others, can be wide and difficult to close without help from
those around them to resolve issues and build on their strengths. This investment
funds services, which support individuals and families to achieve independent living
and social and economic resilience; and to be part of, and sustained by, their
community connections and relationships.
Priority Areas
Outside of COVID-19 response work, the team is involved in a wide range of
commissioning, influencing and enabling activity, a flavour of which is given below.

4

Page 6

 Public Mental Health
This work focuses on prevention of mental ill-health, and promotion of positive
mental wellbeing and good mental health at population level across all age groups.
We commission a range of services including a self-harm helpline, a mental health
and Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) navigator role, and resources and
training for schools to support the wellbeing of pupils via Gloucestershire Healthy
Living and Learning (GHLL).
The Suicide Prevention Steering Group brings together a number of partners,
including the police, mental health services, and the Coroners Office. The group
oversees the county’s regular Suicide Audits, and the countywide suicide prevention
strategy and action plan, in addition to real time surveillance of suspected suicides.
The steering group is supported by the wider Suicide Prevention Partnership Forum
which has over 2,100 members from across the public, VCS and private sectors,
people with lived experience and members of the public.
A number of additional mental health services have been commissioned in response
to Covid-19. These services help provide additional capacity to respond to an
increased demand for mental health support through the pandemic, including:
• an anonymous helpline for children and young people aged 9-21 years
• digital mental wellbeing platforms for adults and under-18s offering free online
counselling and one-to-one counselling support for adults whose mental health
has been significantly impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
 Sexual Health
Since 2013, Local Authorities have been mandated to ensure that comprehensive,
open access, confidential sexual health services are available. The main service
provider for specialist sexual health services is Gloucestershire Health and Care
(GHC). The service provides contraception; the diagnosis and treatment of sexually
transmitted infections; psychosexual medicine; and targeted routine care for people
in vulnerable/ high risk groups
GCC also commission targeted sexual health prevention services. These services
include: community-based HIV prevention and testing, free condom distribution via
the C-Card scheme, social care support for clients with HIV and their carers
(provided by the Eddystone Trust); a Teenage Pregnancy Service and Maternity
Contraception Service (Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Trust); and resources and
training for schools via Gloucestershire Healthy Living and Learning (GHLL). We
also commission GP delivered Long Acting Reversible Contraception (LARC) (coils
and implants) and community pharmacy access to emergency contraception.
Services have remained open throughout the pandemic, albeit with an adapted
model utilising the established programme of online STI testing; and facilities to
enable remote tele-consultations have also been introduced. In person appointments
have remained available for urgent or vulnerable patients. Commissioners are
working together with providers to ensure there is additional capacity in the sexual
health system to meet any additional demand generated by the pandemic.
5

Page 7

 Domestic Abuse
Domestic abuse (DA) causes harm to adults, children and communities; violates
human rights and can affect anyone regardless of age, gender, sexuality, race,
income, class, mental or physical ability and lifestyle. There are strong links
between DA and other areas of our work including mental health; drugs and alcohol,
supporting people and complex needs. Further impetus to the agenda has been
given by the Domestic Abuse Act, which passed into law on 29th April 2021. For the
first time it creates a statutory definition of domestic abuse, and explicitly recognises
children as victims if they see, hear or otherwise experience the effects of abuse.
We have close links with the Sexual Violence Partnership Board and work with
partners to identify and share the learning from Domestic Homicide Reviews. In
2020/21 the core service, which operates under the name of ‘GDASS’, received over
7,000 referrals, up from 5,700 in 2017/18.
The DA Joint Commissioning Framework (developed in Gloucestershire in 2018)
covers procurement of specialist DA services for: victims 16+, places of safety,
addressing perpetrator behaviour, young people 13+, early identification and
workforce development activity, and services to address stalking outside the context
of DA. It does not include commissioning activity for children under 13 years.
The new DA Act places a duty on Tier One local authorities to provide support to
victims of domestic abuse and their children in refuges and other
safe accommodation (Tier 2 authorities have a duty to cooperate), and to establish a
multi agency Domestic Abuse Local Partnership Board (LPB) which is obliged to
prepare a DA needs assessment and Strategy every three years. MHCLG funding
has been allocated to local authorities to support them in meeting their statutory
duties and Gloucestershire has received £1,105,661 for 2021/22.
 Adult Drug and Alcohol Services
GCC is responsible for commissioning drug and alcohol treatment and recovery
services and is required, as a condition of the Public Health Grant, to have regard to
the need to improve the take up of, and outcomes from, its drug and alcohol misuse
treatment services.
The current contract for the drug and alcohol treatment service was awarded to
Change Grow Live (CGL) from 1 January 2017 for five years with an option to extend
until March 2024 which has now been taken up. The 2020/21 contract value is
£5,350,000.
CGL provides a comprehensive service, encompassing group and 1:1 work,
psychosocial interventions, medical treatment/prescribing, harm reduction (e.g.
needle exchange), drug and alcohol arrest referrals, hospital in-reach, residential
rehabilitation and in-patient detox and broader recovery support (e.g. housing,
training and employment). In 2019/20 the service supported 2,605 individuals. An
adapted service model has been in place throughout the pandemic with a greater
emphasis on keeping people in treatment to ensure individual and community safety
and Commissioners have supported the complex case cell to ensure that individuals
experiencing multiple disadvantage could be accommodated and supported.
6

Page 8

Current team activity is focused around ensuring a coordinated harm reduction offer
and a clear pathway for those with co-existing substance misuse and mental health
conditions; completing an alcohol related deaths audit with the Adult Safeguarding
Board; reviewing investment into children and young people’s substance misuse
services; and additional drug treatment, crime and harm reduction activity aimed at
driving down the crime associated with the drug market, particularly acquisitive crime
and violent crime, and the rise in drug-related deaths.
 Supporting People
Supporting People (SP) pays for the housing support that is provided to vulnerable
people to help them live as independently as possible and includes help to people to:
• Settle/stay in their own home with basic skills/confidence to manage day to day
• Gain access to education, training or employment
• Meet their aspirations and foster their ability to achieve positive outcomes such
as becoming a more active member of the local community
• Contact other services such as social care, health, doctors and colleges
These services are delivered through Accommodation Based Support and
Community Based Support (CABS) services. CABS Services form an integral part of
the County’s rehousing, early intervention and prevention pathway for people in
vulnerable circumstances and homeless individuals. Since April 2020, all CABS
services have been purchased through a pseudo-multi provider, multi-purchaser
Framework.
This enables other partners to purchase those services within the
pathway to meet their specific needs.
This pathway has been co-designed in partnership with local stakeholders and
partners, and captures services that support people in vulnerable circumstances to
prevent and/or move away from rough sleeping and homelessness and to live safe,
settled and secure lives.
Over the years CABS services have evolved from delivering long term, deficit-based
support services to a considerably more effective short-term strength-based
approach. There has been a shift from an over reliance of fixed accommodation
and specialist services to a more flexible community based and generic approach
that can better respond to changing patterns of need. The remodelling of these
services has allowed providers to significantly increase the numbers of individuals
they are able to support as well as the quality of outcomes achieved.
 Healthy Lifestyles
The Gloucestershire Healthy Lifestyles Service (HLS) https://www.hlsglos.org/
started in 2017 and will be delivered in the county until April 2024. It provides free,
12 week 1:1 health coaching programmes across the county for those wishing to
make a lifestyle change. People can either self refer or be referred by a health
professional to receive support for the following:
•
•
•
•

Weight Management (including free access to Slimming World groups)
Physical activity
Stop smoking (2020/21 saw the largest number of people accessing the service
to quit smoking with a quit rate of 69%)
Alcohol reduction
7

Page 9

Stop smoking and weight management are both priorities within the NHS Long Term
Plan, with some funding attached, and we are working in partnership to enhance our
local offers.
The service is responsible for delivering a range of training packages e.g. Mental
Health First Aid (MHFA) and Making Every Contact Count (MECC) as well as
delivering specific programmes of intervention including:
• The Gloucestershire Workplace Accreditation Award – working will business to
enable them to support their workforce around mental / physical health &
wellbeing.
• The Healthy Me, Baby & Beyond programme - supports pregnant women and
their families up to a child’s 2nd birthday to make/maintain positive lifestyle
choices.
• The Schools Peer Support Prevention Programme – working with secondary
school pupils to build knowledge, skills and understanding relating to risk taking
behaviours such as smoking, alcohol and sexual health.
• The NHS Health Check is a universal programme and should be offered to all
eligible people aged 40-74 and there is an opportunity to support the reduction of
health inequalities by prioritising checks to the most deprived groups, or people
with the greatest CVD risk. During the pandemic we have seen a significant
downturn in NHS Health Checks activity in Primary Care. Over the next few
months we will be engaging with GPs to resume full activity; strengthening our
targeted approach to delivery and pathways to lifestyle support.
• A whole systems approach to reducing obesity and implementation and
evaluation of ‘We Can Move’ (formerly Gloucestershire Moves) countywide
physical activity programme and the development and implementation of
Gloucestershire Moves – Gloucestershire’s programme to promote active
lifestyles.
 Children’s Public Health
The Council is responsible for commissioning Public Health Nursing Services and is
required, as a condition of the Public Health grant, to offer five mandated visits in
early years and to deliver the Healthy Child Programme for families and children
aged 0 to 5 years, and 5 – 19 years.
Public Health Nursing provides universal Health Visiting and School Nursing services
to all families and children in Gloucestershire and offers levels of additional targeted
support to families with greater needs. Advice and support are available around a
range of public health needs including for families during transition to parenthood,
maternal mental health assessment and support for breastfeeding, parenting,
prevention of accidents, development and school readiness in early years. The
Health Visiting service is key to the early identification and support of children and
young people at risk of poor outcomes including those with Special Educational
Needs and Disabilities (SEND). School age children are able to access support for
developing resilience and improving emotional wellbeing, support to achieve and
maintain a healthy weight, interventions to protect health in relation to risky
behaviours including alcohol, drugs, relationships and sexual health and support for
children and families with additional health and wellbeing needs. The PHNS are an
essential part of the safeguarding system providing a key universal preventative role
8

Page 10

within the overall children’s workforce, and are in contact with and accessible to all
children and young people and their families particularly in the early years.
We also work with the Children and Families Hub and the Clinical Commissioning
Group to scope out a health and care model for children and young people aged 0 –
19 and to deliver a Gloucestershire strategy, underpinned by a collaborative
governance framework. We have a service level agreement with the Education Hub
for the Gloucestershire Healthy Living and Learning offer to schools and commission
and support the delivery of the Pupil Wellbeing Survey.
We commission the National Child Measurement Programme and in order to support
children and families affected by obesity are working with families in parts of
Gloucester City and the Forest of Dean (where childhood obesity levels are highest)
to pilot an innovative children’s healthy weight offer.
We continue to support the Health and Wellbeing Board as it seeks to embed our
approach to Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) and how an ACEs informed
approach should be taken forward in Gloucestershire and offer leadership and input
into the Action on ACEs work programme and partnership.
 Core Offer to the CCG
Under the Health and Social Care Act 20121, the CCG has a duty to obtain advice
appropriate for enabling it effectively to discharge its function from persons who have
a broad range of professional experience in: prevention, diagnosis or treatment of
illness and the protection or improvement of public health.
A Memorandum of
Understanding is in place which outlines the offer of support from Public Health.
This includes: Population Health Management and Population Health Intelligence
programmes; support for ILPs (place-based working), PCNs and CPGs; supporting
the development of the ICS staff health and wellbeing agenda via the ICS OD
delivery group and supporting the implementation, monitoring and evaluation of
initiatives delivered as part of the integrated care system (ICS).
 Enabling Active Communities and Individuals
We lead GCC’s contribution to the multi-agency Enabling Active Communities and
Individuals (EAC-I) work-stream, which bring together projects and programmes
which improve health and wellbeing through mobilising assets within communities;
this includes working with community organisations to develop innovative
approaches to addressing health inequalities in key population groups. Last year,
EAC-I was successful in bidding for £1m of national grant funding broadly aimed at
improving collaborative working, building community capacity and tackling health
inequalities and their root causes.
We continue to coordinate and develop the community offer across the whole care
sector; working within prevention and early intervention elements of the operating
model and being cognisant of how the system works and how changes to the
community offer can affect demand elsewhere
 Health Protection
Local Authority Directors of Public Health have an independent scrutiny and
assurance role, ensuring that the arrangements of local partners and providers:
9

Page 11

•
•

Prevent and mitigate the harm from infectious diseases
Minimise the health impact from environmental hazards

In 2020/21, the team ran the staff flu vaccination programme and responded to
incidents related to avian flu, hepatitis C and multi resistant TB. With respect to
screening and immunisations the team work closely with NHS England PHE staff to
seek assurance regarding the delivery and take up of screening and immunisation
programmes for our local population. We are currently managing the Covid-19 Hub
& overseeing delivery of the Local Outbreak Management Plan (LOMP) which
provides the local road map for the system to prevent, contain, monitor and respond
to outbreaks of COVID-19, alongside our Gloucestershire partners. The team is very
much still in response mode and has provided an effective co-ordinated 7-day duty
desk to respond to information, advice and guidance. Further details are outlined in
more detail in a separate report.
Looking Forward
Helping people to stay healthy and live independently for longer and ensuring
children have the best start in life are major contributors to reducing cost pressures
across the system in the medium and longer term. As such, our prevention activity
plays a key role in supporting the new Council Strategy and therefore the
commissioning intentions of other parts of Gloucestershire County Council, including
children’s and adult social care, as well as the wider system.
Contract arrangements for Community Based Support (CBS) and Accommodation
Based Support (ABS) end dates have been aligned so that we can remodel and
retender the entire provision of ABS and CBS to take a ‘whole system approach’ to
develop those services and pathways that enable independent living and prevent
homelessness. Savings will be realised during the programme through reductions in
community-based support in line with utilisation and reduce capacity of
accommodation-based support in line with demand. This will be undertaken in
parallel with key partners regarding the opportunities to align investment and models
to achieve shared outcomes and objectives.
Our commissioning intentions for 2021/22 are:
1. Deliver mandated functions where they have not been paused by NHS England
due to C:19 and reinstate those that have:
 NHS Health Checks, Sexual Health, National Child Measurement
Programme, Health Protection, Core Offer to the CCG & Health Visiting
service
2. Deliver our driving change projects:
 Local Outbreak Management Plan (LOMP)
 Establishment of multi-purchaser, multi provider pseudo framework for
Community and Accommodation Based Support services (CABS).
3. Engage and influence partners to improve the public’s health and ensure support
for people in vulnerable circumstances and the building and harnessing of
communities’ capacity
10

Page 12




address health inequalities through the Covid-19 BAME Task and Finish
Group
support mental health and wellbeing through the Covid-19 Mental Health &
Wellbeing Cell; working with partners to ensure support is available to
people, especially those in vulnerable circumstances.

4. Develop and embed heath and wellbeing and reducing health inequalities across
GCC business and the wider system.

11

Page 13

Appendix 1: Gloucestershire Health Profile 20195
Health in summary
The health of people in Gloucestershire is generally better than the England average. Gloucestershire is one of the 20% least
deprived counties/unitary authorities in England, however about 12.6% (13,320) children live in low income families. Life
expectancy for both men and women is higher than the England average.
Health inequalities
Life expectancy is 8.4 years lower for men and 5.4 years lower for women in the most deprived areas of Gloucestershire than in the
least deprived areas.

Page 14

Child health
In Year 6, 18.6% (1,224) of children are classified as obese, better than the average for England. The rate for alcohol-specific
hospital admissions among those under 18 is 30*. This represents 38 admissions per year. Levels of teenage pregnancy and
GCSE attainment (average attainment 8 score) are better than the England average.
Adult health
The rate for alcohol-related harm hospital admissions is 674*. This represents 4,344 admissions per year. The rate for self-harm
hospital admissions is 212*, worse than the average for England. This represents 1,280 admissions per year. Estimated levels of
smoking prevalence in adults (aged 18+) and physically active adults (aged 19+) are better than the England average. The rates of
new sexually transmitted infections and new cases of tuberculosis are better than the England average. The rate of killed and
seriously injured on roads is worse than the England average. The rates of statutory homelessness, violent crime (hospital
admissions for violence), under 75 mortality rate from cardiovascular diseases, under 75 mortality rate from cancer and
employment (aged 16-64) are better than the England average.

5

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles/data#page/13/ati/202/are/E10000013

* rate per 100,000 population

12

Health summary for Gloucestershire
Key
Significance compared to goal / England average:
Significantly worse

Significantly lower

Increasing / Getting worse

Increasing / Getting better

Not significantly different

Significantly higher

Decreasing / Getting worse

Decreasing / Getting better

Significantly better

Significance not tested

Increasing

Decreasing

Increasing (not significant)

Decreasing (not significant)

Could not be calculated

No significant change

Page 15

Life expectancy and causes of death
Indicator
1 Life expectancy at birth (male)
2 Life expectancy at birth (female)
3 Under 75 mortality rate from all causes
4 Mortality rate from all cardiovascular
diseases
5 Mortality rate from cancer
6 Suicide rate

All ages 2016 - 18
All ages 2016 - 18
<75 yrs 2016 - 18

n/a
n/a
5340

Value
(Local)
80.2
83.7
295.8

<75 yrs 2016 - 18

1085

59.7

61.9

71.7

Decreasing (not significant)

<75 yrs 2016 - 18
10+ yrs 2016 - 18

2184
172

119.9
10.4

125.6
11.1

132.3
9.64

Decreasing (not significant_
Increasing (not significant)

Age

Period

Count

Value
(Region)
80.2
83.8
301.5

Value
(England)
79.6
83.2
330.5

Increasing (not significant)
Increasing (not significant)
Decreasing (not significant

Change from previous

Injuries and ill health
Indicator

Age

Period

Count

7 Killed and seriously injured (KSI) rate on

All

2016 - 18

884

Value
(Local)
46.9

Value
(Region)
39.8

Value
(England)
42.6 $

Change from previous
Could not be calculated
13

Page 16

Period

Count

Value
(Local)

Value
(Region)

Value
(England)

Change from previous

2018/19

1280

212.1

272.8

193.4

Increasing (not significant)

65+ yrs

2018/19

730

534.4

566.3

558.4

Decreasing (not
significant)

All
ages

2017

1313

51.3

53.3

52.2

Increasing (not significant)

11 Estimated diabetes diagnosis rate

17+ yrs

2018

n/a

77.9

74.0

78.0

12 Estimated dementia diagnosis rate

65+ yrs

2019

5977

68.1 *

62.4 *

68.7 *

Indicator

Age

Period

Count

Value
(Local)

Value
(Region)

Value
(England)

Change from previous

13 Hospital admission rate for alcohol-specific
conditions
14 Hospital admission rate for alcohol-related
conditions

<18
yrs
All
ages
18+
yrs
19+
yrs
18+
yrs

2016/17
- 18/19

115

30.2

44.1

31.6

Decreasing (not
significant)

2018/19

4344

673.8

680.0

663.7

Increasing/getting worse

2018

61322

12.1

13.9

14.4

Decreasing (not
significant)

2017/18

n/a

70.7

70.7

66.3

Increasing (not significant)

2017/18

n/a

61.4

61.0

62.0

Increasing (not significant)

Indicator

Age

England’s roads
8 Emergency hospital admission rate for
intentional self-harm
9 Emergency hospital admission rate for hip
fractures
10 Percentage of cancer diagnosed at early
stage

ages
All
ages

Decreasing (not
significant)
Increasing (not significant)

Behavioural risk factors

15 Smoking prevalence in adults
16 Percentage of physically active adults
17 Percentage of adults classified as
overweight or obese
Child health

14

Indicator

Age

Period

Count

Value
(Local)

Value
(Region)

Value
(England)

Change from previous

<18
yrs
All
ages
All
ages

2017

152

14.8

14.9

17.8

2018/19

666

11.1

10.9 $

10.6

2016/17

2758

-~

79.5

74.5

21 Infant mortality rate

<1 yr

2016 18

66

3.35

3.28

3.93

22 Year 6: Prevalence of obesity (including
severe obesity)

10-11
yrs

2018/19

1224

18.6

16.5

20.2

Age

Period

Count

Value
(Local)

Value
(Region)

Value
(England)

Change from previous

2015

n/a

15.0

-

21.8

Could not be calculated

2018

n/a

19.8

25.5

25.4

Decreasing (not
significant)

Age

Period

Count

Value
(Local)

Value
(Region)

Value
(England)

<16 yrs

2016

13320

12.6

14.0

17.0

15-16 yrs

2018/19

296466

49.0

46.7

46.9

18 Teenage conception rate
19 Percentage of smoking during pregnancy
20 Percentage of breastfeeding initiation

Decreasing (not
significant)
Increasing (not
significant)
Could not be calculated
Increasing (not
significant)
Increasing (not
significant)

Page 17

Inequalities
Indicator
23 Deprivation score (IMD 2015)
24 Smoking prevalence in adults in routine
and manual occupations

All
ages
18-64
yrs

Wider determinants of health
Indicator
25 Percentage of children in low income
families
26 Average GCSE attainment (average
attainment 8 score)

Change from previous
Increasing (not
significant)
Decreasing (not
significant)
15

Age

Period

Count

Value
(Local)

Value
(Region)

Value
(England)

27 Percentage of people in employment

16-64 yrs

2018/19

308500

81.6

78.9

75.6

28 Statutory homelessness rate - eligible
homeless people not in priority need
29 Violent crime - hospital admission rate
for violence (including sexual violence)

Not
applicable

2017/18

120

0.44

0.32

0.79

All ages

2016/17
- 18/19

405

22.5

34.9

44.9

Indicator

Change from previous
Increasing (not
significant)
Increasing (not
significant)
Decreasing (not
significant)

Health protection

Page 18

Indicator

Age

Period

Count

Value
(Local)

Value
(Region)

Value
(England)

Change from previous

30 Excess winter deaths index

All
ages

Aug
2017 Jul 2018

563

29.9

29.5

30.1

Increasing/getting worse

2018

2379

610.4

655.3

850.6

Increasing /getting worse

2016 18

56

2.97

2.75

9.19

Decreasing (not
significant)

31 New STI diagnoses rate (exc chlamydia
aged <25)
32 TB incidence rate

15-64
yrs
All
ages

For full details on each indicator, see the definitions tab of the Local Authority Health Profiles online tool.
For a full list of profiles produced by Public Health England, see the fingertips website: https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/

Indicator value types
1,2 Life expectancy - years 3,4,5 Directly age-standardised rate per 100,000 population aged under 75 6 Directly age-standardised rate per
100,000 population aged 10 and over 7 Crude rate per 100,000 population 8 Directly age-standardised rate per 100,000 population 9 Directly
age-standardised rate per 100,000 population aged 65 and over 10 Proportion - % of cancers diagnosed at stage 1 or 2 11 Proportion - %
16

recorded diagnosis of diabetes as a proportion of the estimated number with diabetes 12 Proportion - % recorded diagnosis of dementia as a
proportion of the estimated number with dementia 13 Crude rate per 100,000 population aged under 18 14 Directly age-standardised rate per
100,000 population 15,16,17 Proportion 18 Crude rate per 1,000 females aged 15 to 17 19,20 Proportion 21 Crude rate per 1,000 live
births 22 Proportion 23 Index of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) 2015 score 24 Proportion 25,26 Slope index of inequality 27 Proportion 28 Mean
average across 8 qualifications 29 Proportion 30 Crude rate per 1,000 households 31 Directly age-standardised rate per 100,000
population 32 Ratio of excess winter deaths to average of non-winter deaths 33 Crude rate per 100,000 population aged 15 to 64 (excluding
Chlamydia) 34 Crude rate per 100,000 population

* Value compared to a goal (see below)
~ Value not published for data quality reasons
$ Aggregated from all known lower geography values

Page 19

Thresholds for indicators that are compared against a goal
Indicator Name
12 Estimated dementia diagnosis rate (aged 65
and over)

Green
>= 66.7%
(significantly)

Amber

Red

similar to 66.7%

< 66.7% (significantly)

You may re-use this information (not including logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government
Licence. To view this licence, visit www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3

17

Appendix II: Strategic Drivers for the PWC Team
National Strategic Drivers
Preventing Ill-Health and Heath Inequalities
The strategy for Public Health in England was laid out in the Government’s White
Paper Healthy Lives, Healthy People (2010)6. More recently the Prevention Green
Paper Advancing Our Health – Prevention in the 2020s (2019)7, the NHS Long
Term Plan (2019)8 have driven the strategic direction.
Marmot Review 10 Years On (2020)9 – noted widening health inequalities over the
last decade and reiterates the need for action across the social determinants of
health including the development of anchor institutions approaches and a ‘health
systems’ approach to population health, with partnerships among a range of sectors.
A new health and social care White Paper ‘Integration and innovation: working
together to improve health and social care for all10’ was published in February
2021 setting out proposals for a new Health and Care Bill and this will build on the
ambitions in the NHS Long Term Plan. There are also plans to make changes in
social care, public health and mental health with further details still to emerge.
Preventing the (repeat) risk of harm to people in vulnerable circumstances
The Ending Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy 2016 – 2011 provides an
overview of the wide range of actions the government is taking to end violence
against women and girls. It was launched on 8 March 2016 and refreshed in March
2019 and was the precursor to the Domestic Abuse Act 2021.
The Serious Violence Prevention Strategy 201812 – focuses on prevention and
early intervention as one of the four main themes. This is also underpinned by
guidance on the public health approach to reducing violence.
The Rough Sleepers Strategy 201813 – sets out the government’s vision for halving
rough sleeping by 2022 and ending it by 2024. The original target to eliminate rough
sleeping had been 2027 but this has now been brought forward. COVID has been a
huge stimulus for getting people off of the streets and achieving the goals set out in
the strategy.
The Homelessness Reduction Act 201714 - modifies and extends existing
homelessness protection
Children Social Care Act 2017 – extension of duties for care leavers up to 25.
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/healthy-lives-healthy-people-our-strategy-for-public-healthin-england
7 Advancing our Health: Prevention in the 2020s
8 https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/
9 The Marmot Review: 10 years on
10 Integration and innovation: working together to improve health and social care for all
11 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/strategy-to-end-violence-against-women-and-girls-2016-to2020
12 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/serious-violence-strategy
13 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-rough-sleeping-strategy
14 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2017/13/contents
6

18

Page 20

Local strategic drivers




The strategic priorities of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2019-30)
are: ACEs; Best Start in Life; Mental Health and Wellbeing; Social Isolation;
Housing; Physical Activity; and Healthy Lifestyles (focusing initially on Healthy
Weight)
The strategic priorities of the Safer Gloucestershire Partnership include:
Locality-based crime; safeguarding children; deprivation and vulnerability; drug
and alcohol misuse; domestic abuse and sexual violence; criminal exploitation

Integrated Care System (ICS) priorities and local delivery of the NHS Long Term
Plan (2019-29):




Strategic Lead for the ICS Five-year ICS Prevention and Health Inequalities
Framework
Strategic leadership for Population Health Management and Evaluation
Public Health support to Integrated Locality Partnerships (ILPs)

Director of Public Health Annual Reports:



2019 – ‘Healthonomics15’ - focusing on the link between health and wealth,
recommendations include the development of an anchor institutions approach
2020 – ‘Beyond COVID: Race, Health and Inequality16’ – recommends local
action to control and mitigate the short- and longer-term impacts.

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gloucestershire-county-council-news/news-september-2019/publichealth-report-calls-for-action-to-tackle-inequalities-and-grow-the-economy/
16 https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/gloucestershire-county-council-news/news-october-2020/publichealth-report-calls-for-action-on-health-inequalities-faced-by-bame-residents/
15

19

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3b
Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee Induction
Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health
22nd June 2021 – Adult Social Care Report

Strategic Direction
We support approximately 25,000 people who have a disability, are vulnerable, or live with
an age-related disorder, as well as commissioning services aimed at addressing social
care and health inequalities, promoting health and well being.
Despite the additional pressure and restrictive nature of the Pandemic, our strategic
ambition continues to be to support people to live independently. This reflects the national
policy framework created by Think Local Act Personal, which built on the direction set by
“Putting People First” with its focus on community support and involvement, early
intervention, prevention and reablement services. This has also been reinforced by the
detailed guidance released in support of the Care Act 2014.
The Care Act 2014 (and its Statutory Guidance) consolidated and modernised the
framework of care and support law; it set out new duties for local authorities and partners,
and new rights for service users and carers. The new statutory principle of individual
wellbeing underpins the Act, and is intended as the driving force behind care and support.
Local authorities (and their partners in health, housing, welfare and employment services)
must now take steps to prevent, reduce or delay the need for care and support for all local
people.
The Act includes a statutory requirement for local authorities to collaborate, cooperate and
integrate with other public authorities e.g. health and housing. It also requires seamless
transitions for young people moving to adult social care services.
The Act also places a duty on local authorities to ensure that information and advice on
care and support is available to all and when they need it. Independent advocacy must
also be arranged if a person would otherwise be unable to participate in, or understand,
the care and support system. It is also the local authorities’ role to ensure diversity and
quality in the market of care providers so that there are enough high-quality services for
people to choose from. Local authorities must also step in to ensure that no vulnerable
person is left without the care they need if their service closes due to business failure.
The act also set out a new statutory safeguarding framework to protect adults from neglect
and abuse and the creation of Safeguarding Adults Boards (SAB - see below). Whilst
anybody, including a carer, who appears to need care or support is entitled to an
assessment, regardless of financial contact with the council, which must focus on
outcomes important to the individual. Any needs currently being met by a carer should still
be included in the assessment. The local authority must then apply a national eligibility
threshold to determine whether the individual has eligible needs.
As part of this, and for those people who have ongoing needs, we want to ensure we put
each individual service user in control of their care and support, offering choice, providing

Page 23

professional advice and enabling their voice to be heard, with the ultimate aim of improving
outcomes for people.

Demographic changes indicate a rising demand for support from people with increasingly
complex needs that requires us to better manage and respond to demand. This will involve
a range of partnerships, many of which will be new relationships with communities. Whilst
it will be challenging financially, it will result in investment in local communities and will
provide opportunities to work with community and voluntary sector agencies in new ways
and ensure we are sensitive to the communities in which many of our service users live.
We are reducing reliance on institutional care, creating innovative alternatives and
encouraging the use of universal services, whilst recognising that there will always be a
place for specialists too. We are also addressing the wider responsibilities in the Act for
carers and for all people with care needs and not just those we support. We are also
continuing to promote an ethos of early intervention and prevention as an integral element
to our intentions. The resultant three tier “offer” is as shown in Figure 2 (see over):
In line with the strategic direction set out above, we have a series of projects targeted at
living within our means and adjusting to meeting demand differently. Most of these are
designed around the implementation of national policy and good practice – expanding on
the model of reablement, working in multidisciplinary teams whilst increasing our
investment in the management of the social care function, avoiding crisis, commissioning
differently, listening to our service users and improving the customer journey. We also
continue to look at our processes.
The scale and pace of change continues at an unprecedented level and will create
transitional issues as we all adjust to working in a different way. Communicating our
intentions and listening to the voice of those we serve will be central to our thinking and
will assist us to ensure all voices are heard and concerns and questions are actively
addressed. All activities will be subject to community impact assessments and specific
consultation will be undertaken where appropriate with stakeholders. We will actively
pursue opportunities to engage with service users and their carers to continue to build
confidence in those partnerships.

Page 24

Figure 2 - Adult Social Care Offer

At the heart of this work is culture change, based on a three tier conversation at the
frontline in adult services that gives us a simple structure to help focus on helping people
to help themselves as figure 3:

Operations
There are eight main teams across the County. Six cover a different locality – Stroud,
Gloucester, Cheltenham, Forest, Cotswolds and Tewkesbury. There is also a team

Page 25

supporting discharges from both Acute Hospitals; Gloucester Royal, and Cheltenham
General. The final team is one that supports all Adults with a Learning Disability.
Based within the Learning Disablement Team although supporting all younger adults with
a disability is the Enablement team. This team covers a wide range of activities, to support
people usually in their own homes; these include help to improve daily living skills and
routines, access the local community, support with correspondence and paperwork.
In addition to there is a small Countywide team supporting people with a Sensory loss.
The Sensory Team provide a service to visually impaired, Deaf and Hard of Hearing
individuals. Rehabilitation officers with Visually Impaired people provide specialist
rehabilitation training, in all aspects of daily life, to individuals with a sight loss to maximise
their independence. The team also provide specialist assessments to Deafblind people
and equipment to Deaf people, when assessed as a need.
The eight main teams are led by an Integrated Social Care Manager, supported by a
leadership team comprising of a Deputy and both Social Work and Social Care leads. The
team is a mixture of qualified and unqualified social care staff, an Occupational Therapist
and has enablement team input.
Following the role out of the Three Conversation model, each team is split into small hubs,
with a leader. The hubs comprise of 4 to 6 members of staff with mixed roles. Each hub
will meet twice a week, to review the people they are seeing, share ideas, manage risks,
encourage creativity, and support decision making. This model allows staff to feel very
supported in their work, encourages them to think “out of the box” and shares ideas for
problem solving.
Figure 4 – Fieldwork Hubs

Ca re As sessor

Ca re
As s essor

Ena blement

Lead
Care
Assessor

Social
Worker

OT

Through the increased networking and engagement with Community resources we are
able to support more people in their own homes to be as independent as possible and live
the life they want to live. We have supported more people to manage without a
dependence on formal support – and encourage their engagement in the local resources.

Page 26

Commissioning
Although the focus in this document is on Adult Social Care, most of our commissioning
work is carried out jointly with the Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG)
and many of the intentions referred to reflect joint priorities. During 2021/22 and beyond
the Council will also work with GCCG and other local Health partners on the developments
needed to take full advantage of Gloucestershire’s Integrated Care System (ICS) status.
Integrated Commissioning is made up of several interlinking hubs which, together, cover a
huge breadth of activity across the ICS. The social care element provides for every level of
need, from support in your own home and community to accommodation based care within
a specialised service, for every kind of person whether their needs are associated with
physical disability, learning disability, mental health or arising with age. The Health
element covers community health services which range from supporting people to manage
complex conditions at home to enabling people to return home after a hospital stay and
includes children’s services as well as adults.
Within the service there are specialist teams to deal with specific areas of commissioning
such as the Integrated Brokerage Team which arranges every individual package of care
whether needs are long term and ongoing or short term such as reablement or respite.
There are also the Transforming Care Team which focuses on reducing long term
institutional placements of people with complex needs and the Carers Team which works
with our commissioned provider of Carers Services and our operational teams to
understand to and respond to the needs of carers in the county.
The functions of the Integrated Commissioning includes Market management and shaping;
analysing and understanding the local health and social care market and working with
providers across the statutory, private and voluntary sectors to ensure there is a broad and
diverse range of good quality provision of services available to meet the needs of our
population.
Integrated Commissioning is also responsible for ensure a joined up approach to the
procurement of Adult and community based Health and Social Care Services across the
county. Current procurement processes in train include the development of a new bed
based care contract, the re-procurement of our Advocacy contract and ongoing
recruitment of providers to the Domiciliary and Community Care Frameworks. In all
instances ensuring that we secure value for money, giving due consideration to all relevant
factors including social value, risk, quality and price.
Post contract award, quality assurance and contract management also sits in Integrated
Commissioning; performance managing services and ensuring delivery of contracted
services and compliance with regulatory requirements.
Another main area of activity relates to stakeholder engagement. The Commissioning
Hubs lead on developing and managing relationships with staff, providers, citizens, service
users and carers using engagement, consultation and co-production.
Examples of ongoing engagement cover both provider organisations such as the
Gloucestershire Care Providers Association (GCPA) and Partnership Boards covering
Carers and Disabilities. However, the overall aim is to ensure that stakeholder
representation is engaged throughout the cycle of commissioning, from planning to

Page 27

procurement through to provision and then onwards with regards to continual performance
improvement and review.
The final main area of activity is the development of strategies to deliver on organisational
objectives, either through the provision of effective Health and Social Care Services for
Adults or through wider partnership activity. We are currently updating our Autism
Strategy and developing a Community Services strategy to cover domiciliary care,
supported living and the wider community offer. As part of this we also devise, manage
and update policies and procedures, ensuring the adoption of best practice methodology,
rules, standards and thresholds and disseminate these to staff across relevant
organisations.
Safeguarding
Safeguarding means protecting an adult’s right to live in safety, free from abuse and
neglect. It is about people and organisations working together to prevent and stop both the
risks and experience of abuse or neglect, while at the same time making sure that the
adult’s wellbeing is promoted including, where appropriate, having regard to their views,
wishes, feelings and beliefs in deciding on any action.
The Care Act 2014 set out the Local Authority's responsibility for protecting adults with
care and support needs from abuse or neglect for the first time in primary legislation. Local
Authorities must make enquiries, or cause another agency to do so, whenever abuse or
neglect is suspected in relation to an adult and the local authority thinks it necessary to
enable it to decide what (if any) action is needed to help and protect the adult. This
function cannot be delegated.
Adult Safeguarding Duties
The adult safeguarding duties under section 42 of the Care Act 2014 apply to an adult,
aged 18 or over, who:




has needs for care and support (whether or not the local authority is meeting any of
those needs); and
is experiencing, or at risk of, abuse or neglect; and
as a result of those care and support needs is unable to protect themselves from
either the risk of, or the experience of, abuse or neglect.

Adults who may be the focus of safeguarding range from those whose decision-making
capacity is severely impaired, to adults with no underlying cognitive impairment but whose
physical situation, or a brief period of illness, has temporarily affected their ability to protect
their own interests. The nature of the harm involved can also range from violent physical
and psychological abuse through various forms of personal, financial or organisational
abuse or neglect, to a failure to provide timely access to key services. Abuse or neglect of
adults at risk can also take place in a wide variety of contexts.
The GCC Safeguarding Adults team is responsible for making decisions on all concerns
raised with the Council about whether or not the concern should proceed to a section 42
enquiry.

Page 28

Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (GSAB)
The Care Act 2014 put Safeguarding Adults Boards (SAB) on a statutory footing, requiring
each local authority to set up a SAB. The main objective of a SAB is to assure itself that
local safeguarding arrangements, and partners, act to help and protect adults in its area
who meet the criteria set out in section 42 of the Care Act.
The Board has an Independent Chair, Paul Yeatman, and there are three statutory SAB
members: Gloucestershire County Council, Gloucestershire Constabulary and
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group (GCCG). In addition to these members, a
large number of local agencies are represented from the statutory and voluntary sectors.
GSAB has three core duties under the Care Act:






it must publish a strategic plan for each financial year that sets how it will meet its
main objective and what the members will do to achieve this. The plan must be
developed with local community involvement, and the SAB must consult the local
Healthwatch organisation. The plan should be evidence based and make use of all
available evidence and intelligence from partners to form and develop its plan;
it must publish an annual report detailing what the SAB has done during the year to
achieve its main objective and implement its strategic plan, and what each member
has done to implement the strategy as well as detailing the findings of any
safeguarding adults reviews and subsequent action (this report is sent to the Adults
Scrutiny Committee);
it must conduct any safeguarding adults review in accordance with Section 44 of the
Act.

Safeguarding Adult Reviews (SARs)
SABs must arrange a SAR when an adult with care and support needs in its area dies as a
result of abuse or neglect, whether known or suspected, and there is concern that partner
agencies could have worked more effectively to protect the adult.
SABs must also arrange a SAR if an adult in its area has not died, but the SAB knows or
suspects that the adult has experienced serious abuse or neglect. SABs are free to
arrange for a SAR in any other situations involving an adult in its area with needs for care
and support.
Current challenges
Current challenges for GSAB include how to safeguard people with complex needs who
are at high risk of serious harm through abuse, neglect and self-neglect and are reluctant
to engage with services, often as a result of childhood trauma and abuse (Adverse
Childhood Experiences - ACEs). Three SARs are currently underway in relation to
complex individuals and this issue will form an important part of GSAB’s strategic plan,
which is currently being reviewed.
Adult Single Programme
Given the scale and its transformational nature as referred to in this document, Adult
Social Care change is overseen through a consolidated programme with a small dedicated

Page 29

team reporting to the Deputy Director. The programme is run on a cluster basis as shown
in Figure 5
Figure 5 – Adult Single Programme

Adult Social Care Contacts
Sarah Scott – Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health
Sarah.L.Scott@Gloucestershire.gov.uk
01452 328497
Kim Forey – Director of Integration CCG/GCC
KimForey@nhs.net
0300 4211628
Dawn Porter - Director: Adult Social Care Operations
Dawn.PORTER@gloucestershire.gov.uk
01452 328325
Mark Branton - Deputy Director: Adult Social Care
Mark.Branton@gloucestershire.gov.uk
01452 328483

Page 30

Agenda Item 3c
Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee Induction
Report from the Interim Chief Fire Officer
22nd June 2021 – Community Safety Report
Gloucestershire County Council has a legal duty to provide a fire and rescue service for
the County. Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service deliver this duty on behalf of the
County Council through focused prevention and protection work, combined with response
to emergencies in times of need.
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service is committed to involving all sections of the
community in the decisions that need to be made about future service provision and how
best to protect the most vulnerable in the communities.
Included within the remit of the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee is
a requirement for Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) to provide the
committee with a strategic update on key issues and matters relating to community safety
provision and non-fire related services provided by GFRS.
At the Gloucestershire County Council Annual General Meeting on 19 May 2021, the
Council agreed to establish a new, (stand alone), scrutiny committee, comprising seven
members, to scrutinise the Fire and Rescue Service. The new committee will be asked to
carry out the scrutiny functions of the County Council, as set out in Article 8 of the
Constitution, in the context of matters relating to Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service,
including: a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)

Response to fire and other emergencies
Fire regulation, prevention and promoting fire safety
Performance against Key and Local Performance Indicators
Progress against recommendations from inspections and delivery of the
Improvement Plan
Co-operation and partnership working with other local responders to enhance coordination and efficiency and increase community resilience
Cross-boundary co-operation with other Fire and Rescue Authorities
Civil contingency planning
Leadership, culture and workforce development across the service

It is important to note that the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny
Committee is no longer required to consider the above, fire related, aspects of work
as part of their remit.
1. Trading Standards
Overall demand on the service in 2020/21 was 25% higher than the previous year
reflecting the additional work of the Service in relation to Covid Restrictions. Conversely,
the number of inspections completed and breaches of the law investigated was
considerably lower than the previous year. This will be reflected in the number of formal
investigations carried into and concluded in 2021/22.
Moving into 2021/22, following the easing of lockdown restrictions, especially the
requirement for non-essential businesses to close, the Trading Standards Service has

Page 31

seen a return to business as usual. Officers are once more responding to a variety of
consumer complaints. Those which pose an imminent threat, inspections to food outlets,
farms and livestock markets have resumed and we are planning projects which will test
compliance by traders whose responsibilities have changed following EU Exit.
Officers were largely able to complete funded animal feed inspections last year following a
relaxation by the Food Standards Agency (FSA) to allow ‘virtual’ inspections; concerns
about loss of revenue are allayed and feed related income in 2021/22 will be largely as
forecast.
The Food Standards agency also monitors levels of inspection and intervention with high,
medium and low risk food premises. There is a national backlog in work in this area
including inspections not carried out in Gloucestershire during the pandemic; the FSA
have presented Local Authorities with a timeline to address this backlog. We are confident
we can meet the timeframe and complete all outstanding inspections by June 2022 as
required.
2. Coroners Services
The Coroner’s Service has continued to run its entire core functions from the Coroner’s
Court at Barnwood, Gloucester throughout the pandemic. Autopsies and body
receipt/releases has been continuous in the mortuary, with enhanced PPE as directed by
professional bodies. The majority of bodies have been swabbed on receipt with the results
of these swabs dictating future investigation. The Senior Coroner has relaxed
expectations on internal examinations to help ease pressures on staff and duty
pathologists. All members of the team have now received both of their vaccinations. The
Coroner’s Officers and admin were operating a ‘two team’ system during the most recent
lockdown but have now re-joined as one as restrictions have been eased to help the
business needs and continuity of the service. Those able to, are still utilising working from
home whenever appropriate.
Inquests have continued to operate from Barnwood during all lockdowns. The majority of
these have had minimal public attendance for social distancing reasons. The Senior
Coroner is now considering those cases that can be rescheduled for later in the year (if in
accordance with Government guidelines) and the office of the Chief Coroner has also
recently issued guidance encouraging local services to devise plans to deal with backlogs.
The service also continues to investigate electronic means for allowing more people to
virtually attend these hearings.

3. Civil Protection Team/Local Resilience Forum
Operational Response:
The Civil Protection Team (CPT) continues to support the response to C-19.
The CPT Duty Officers are on-call 24/7 and have responded to a number of incidents
between February – May 2021 as outlined below:
 Explosion at property with potential evacuation
 Suspect package – potential evacuation
 Water Supply interruption

Page 32




Unexploded device – potential evacuation
Building fire – support displaced residents




LRF Mass Evacuation and Shelter Plan updated and finalised
Coastal Pollution Plan near completion pending decision on coastal pollution
contractor
Full revision of the Animal Disease Plan being undertaken
Supporting the re-write of the LRF Fuel Plan
As per DEFRA’s updated guidance, re-writing the strategic part of the MultiAgency Flood Plan
Revising the Human Aspects Centre Plan, to include a virtual version
Revising Major Accident Hazard Pipeline Plan in consultation with key
stakeholders

Plans:







Training / Exercises
CPT, in partnership with other LRF member agencies, delivered the first face to face
JESIP multi-agency Operational course on 21st May 21.
District Service Level Agreements
The Service Level agreements to support five of the districts with their emergency
management have been renegotiated and signed for a further three years (April 2021 –
March 2024). Annual work plans have been written & agreed for each district.
Prevent
An SLA, covering a three-year period with all Partnership Board members for secretariat
support has been reviewed in consultation with GCC legal, for approval at GPPB June
2021.

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

ASCC Induction Planning Session

Page 35

Tuesday 22 June 2021

Agenda Item 3d

Economy, Environment and Infrastructure
(EE&I)

EEI Service Areas
Colin Chick – Executive Director
Colin.Chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk 01452 328470
PA: Sarah Johns Sarah.Johns@gloucestershire.gov.uk 01452 328320
Highways

Strategic
Community
Infrastructure Infrastructure

Libraries &
Registration

Adult
Education

Waste
Management

Page 36

Kath Haworth

Simon Excell

Philip
Williams

Jane Everiss

Sarah Carne

Wayne Lewis

112.5 FTEs

40 FTEs

144 FTEs

150 FTEs

33 FTEs

8 FTEs

Delivery Partners
•
•
•
•
•
•

District Authorities
Joint Core Strategy Partnership
G:First Local Enterprise Partnership
Western Gateway Partnership
Department for Transport / Highways England
MHCLG / Homes England

•
•
•
•

Tarmac
Ringway
Milestone Infrastructure
Atkins

•
•
•
•
•

Stagecoach
NSL (Parking)
Ubico
UBB
Fastershire – BT and Gigaclear

EE&I – Our responsibilities

Page 37

•
•
•

Emergency and responsive
Our core services
Transformational and Growth

Community Infrastructure
Tom Main
Integrated
Transport Unit
Liz Kirkham
Page 38

Network &
Traffic Management

Philip Williams

Lead Commissioner, Community Infrastructure
Philip.williams@gloucestershire.gov.uk
01452 328482

Nathan Drover
Highways
Development
Management

Jo Atkins

ThinkTravel
Peter Wiggins

Alexis Newport

Louise Broughton
Mike Collins

Sustainability
& Climate Change

Parking
& Traffic Orders

Road Safety
& Data

Gypsy and
Travellers

Community Infrastructure – key areas

Page 39

• HDM - Enabling growth (housing and business developments)
• ITU - Public, community, education transport, bus passes,
ThinkTravel (School Crossing Patrols, Bikeability and GCC Fleet.
• Highway Network Management – Road Safety (KSI analysis,
scheme prioritisation, cameras, 20mph, liaison with Police &
GFRS), on street Parking, Streetworks, Traffic Signals, Highway
Records and modifications to the Rights of Way map
• Climate Change & Air Quality – Action Plan to reduce CO2
emissions to Net Zero; 1000 EV charge points, renewable
energy, tree planting and improving air quality
• Gypsy & Travellers: managing 4 sites and unauthorised sites

Libraries and Registration

Jane Everiss

Head of Libraries and Registration Services
Jane.Everiss@gloucestershire.gov.uk
01452 425027
Page 40

Jenny Jones
Operations
Manager
Jo Lager

Curtis Fulcher

Katie Smith

Registration
Service Manager

Development
Manager

Digital Services
Manager

Libraries & Registration

Page 41

Libraries
• Provide statutory Library service at 39
locations
• Roll out of Innovation labs 1 per district
• Support groups for all ages
• Free public Wi-Fi and PCs, ICT assistance,
job clubs and career days
To help protect your privacy, PowerPoint has blocked automatic download of this picture.

Registration
• Statutory Registration of Births and Deaths
and Notices of Marriage
• Responsibility for performing legal
Marriages and Civil Partnerships
• delivery and management of citizenship,
the custody and care of historic records and
the issuing of copy certificates

EE&I Strategic Service Drivers
We plan for a sustainable future by:

Page 42

Implementing the Covid-19 Economic Recovery Plan
Ensuring we meet the needs of our adult learners
Extending the use of our libraries
Delivering a portfolio of major infrastructure projects
Being responsive to how people connect and use their
local communities
• Managing the transition to being carbon ‘Net Zero’ by
2030
• Engaging with our District partners to support the
production of long-term growth plans
•
•
•
•
•

Thank you for listening
Page 43

Economy, Environment and Infrastructure
(EE&I) Directorate

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee Induction
Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health
22nd June 2021 – Public Health COVID-19 Update

1. Purpose of Paper
No other event in recent years has had the impact of COVID-19 across every
member of society across the world. The challenge to fight the virus and get back to
“normal” remains one that faces most countries. In the UK, in February 2021, the
UK Government set out a Roadmap with a phased approach to easing lockdown
restrictions over the coming months with the aim to return to removal of all measures
by 21st June.
Gloucestershire’s first cases of COVID-19 were confirmed on 28 February 2020. The
first Strategic Coordination Group (SCG), a multi-agency forum for managing
emergency response in the county, was held on 29 February 2020. Since then, the
County Council’s Prevention, Wellbeing and Communities team has led an ongoing
response to the pandemic; this report outlines that activity and highlights the next
steps as we hopefully move to recovery from the virus.
2. COVID-19 Local Outbreak Management Plans
Having managed the response to the emerging COVID-19 cases alongside
colleagues from Public Health England in early Spring last year, on 10 June 2020 it
was announced that funding would be made available to Public Health teams in
Upper Tier Local Authorities to support the ongoing response activity and provide
much needed funding for local community activities such as testing and additional
contact tracing to track and isolate cases of the virus.
The funding was based on the 2020/21 Public Health Grant allocation; for
Gloucestershire County Council this is £2.2 million paid in one instalment in June
2020. In October 2020, additional funding through the Contain Outbreak
Management Fund (COMF) was announced with Gloucestershire allocated a total of
over £20 million to date.
The condition to this funding was that Local Authorities produced a COVID-19 Local
Outbreak Management Plan (LOMP) which would provide the strategic and
governance framework for accessing and mobilising local resources to implement
effective health protection control measures across an area, and that this should be
overseen by the Director of Public Health.
3. Gloucestershire’s LOMP
Gloucestershire’s LOMP provides the local road map for the system to rapidly
prevent, contain, respond and monitor COVID-19. The Prevention, Wellbeing and
Communities (PWC) Hub provides the strategic leadership for the LOMP which
includes:


Chairing of and providing regular reports to the Health Protection Board
1

Page 45







Chairing of and providing regular reports to the Tactical Response Group
Lead role in the Tactical Enforcement Group
Lead role in the Testing Coordination Cell and Community Testing Cell
Lead role in the Community Resilience Cell
Advisory role and initiating projects for the vaccination Equity Group

The overarching aim of the LOMP is to keep COVID-19 under control in
Gloucestershire by:
•
•
•
•

preventing the spread of COVID-19
the early identification and proactive management of local outbreak
co-ordination of capabilities across agencies and stakeholders
assuring the public and stakeholders that this is being effectively delivered

4. Prevent, Contain, Respond and Monitor
 MONITOR
Since the beginning of the pandemic, over 22,000 people in Gloucestershire have
tested positive for COVID-19. At the peak of the first wave approximately 60 people
were testing positive each day, however only those working in healthcare or admitted
to hospital were being tested (termed pillar 1 testing) and therefore the true number
of cases at this time is unknown.
During the second wave in winter 20/21 the numbers testing positive were
significantly higher with improved access to testing. Local intelligence on infections,
outbreaks and severe illness has been monitored daily throughout the pandemic and
used to inform local preventative activity and to target testing and contact tracing
resources.

We continue to closely monitor the trend and analyse information on cases and
outbreaks across the county. Through identifying potential links (such as workplaces, schools or public venues) we are better able to prevent onwards chains of
transmission in the community.

2

Page 46

Source: https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/details/interactive-map
To support our residents and partners in being able to access timely information on
cases and the impact of COVID-19 in the county we maintain a publically accessible
resource page, and this remains GCC’s most frequently accessed webpage.
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/inform/health/latest-data-and-analysis-related-toCOVID-19-in-gloucestershire/
Variants of Concern
We do need to be aware that COVID-19 is a virus and all viruses can change over
time, and SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19 disease, is no exception.
Changes can build up in the genetic code of the virus, and these new viral variants
can be passed from person to person. Most of the time the changes are so small that
they have little impact on the virus. We sequence a proportion of all COVID-19
Tests in the UK to look for these genetic changes.
But every so often a virus mutates in a way that benefits it, for example allowing it to
spread more quickly, and causes us to be concerned about changes in the way the
virus might behave. In this case the variant may be considered a ‘variant of concern’
by the UK government. There have been four of “variants of concern” so far. The
first emerged in Kent before Christmas (Alpha), spotted because cases were still
rising under Tier 3 restrictions; it was making up about 80% of all UK infections until
recently. This variant is more transmissible because it has a change to the “spike
protein” (which helps it stick to cells to invade them) but the vaccine still works as
well as predicted on it.
The Beta (South Africa) and Gamma (Brazil) variants have a mutation of a part of the
genome called E484K – this is the bit of the cell that antibodies developed through
vaccination will recognise and so there are concerns that our vaccines might not be
as effective in stopping spread, illness and death. This is another reason why even if
people are vaccinated, then they should keep following the rules.
The most recent Variant of Concern is the Delta variant (which originated in India)
has now become the dominant strain in the UK. There is some evidence it may be
more transmissible, but two doses of the vaccine does still appear to prevent serious
3

Page 47

disease. The good news is, the same measures work – hands, face and space, and
isolating if you have symptoms. Locally we have plans for developing “surge testing”
seen in other parts of the country which aim to find people with variant COVID-19
infection, trace their contacts and ensure they are self-isolating. This can be useful if
there is significant spread of COVID-19 to help prevent further cases and the
possibility of another variant occurring.
We are hopeful that more “holistic” vaccines will be developed in time that will
recognise the whole virus, rather than just bits of the genome that then might mutate.
This also means we have to plan for future vaccination programmes.
 PREVENT
General Guidance (Non-Pharmaceutical interventions)
The COVID-19 preventive strategies that will help protect both individuals and others
include:






Following the rules of hands, face, space and ventilate
If symptomatic, self-isolating and getting a test
If asymptomatic, getting a regular, rapid COVID test
Having a COVID-19 vaccine when invited to do so
Letting in fresh air/ensuring ventilation of indoor spaces

Making changes to individual behaviours through physical and social distancing, use
of face masks, hand hygiene and ensuring there is fresh air remain the most
important steps everyone can take to prevent catching and spreading COVID-19.
Everyone is encouraged to wash their hands with soap and water for at least 20
seconds, or use hand sanitiser, regularly throughout the day. They are asked to stay
two metres apart from people outside their household or bubble. When social
distancing is not possible, it is advised that people wear a face covering. This
remains a requirement when visiting shops or supermarkets. As restrictions start to
ease, there is still a recommendation that people should minimise the amount of time
spent indoors with people they do not live with. Opening windows and doors remains
the simplest way of improving ventilation for most people.
Whilst the national roadmap out of lockdown allows more freedoms, COVID is still
present. Everyone is encouraged to continue to follow the guidelines so that COVID
cases are kept under control.
The local LOMP programme focuses on ensuring that ongoing prevention measures
are in place across the population, but specifically in high risk settings and
communities. Settings that have the potential to be more vulnerable to the spread of
COVID-19 include schools and universities. Settings with a population more
vulnerable to the spread of COVID-19 include the care sector and homelessness.
Settings with concentrated populations include workplaces and events. Prevention
remains a key approach in all of these settings due to their increased level of risk.
Vaccinations
The first aim for the NHS vaccination programme has been to reduce severe illness
and death from COVID-19 by prioritising those who are most clinically vulnerable,
4

Page 48

either due to age, co-morbidities or other vulnerabilities, e.g. where they live. Under
the governance of the Gloucestershire Vaccine Inequalities Group we have been
monitoring uptake across the county to ensure that any inequalities in uptake are
understood and solutions can be developed to address any barriers to uptake.
The COVID-19 vaccination programme has moved at an exceptional pace with 75%
of adults in Gloucestershire having received their first dose of vaccine, with
ambitions to ensure that everyone over 18 is offered their vaccine by the end of July.
We know that there are various influences on individual decision making and vaccine
hesitancy. These include access and method of invitation and delivery of the
vaccine, individual risk versus benefit decision making, trust in health and care
services, as well as their own experiences of COVID-19. As a system the NHS
Vaccination programme and its partners, including GCC, have been working closely
with communities to understand barriers to uptake and increase accessibility to and
confidence in the vaccine. Solutions have included; outreach to care homes and
other settings such as hostels and homelessness accommodation, walk-in clinics in
Primary care and home visits to those that are unable to travel. Further outreach in
religious venues and other community sites is currently being scoped.
Social care vaccinations
A key priority has been to support social care staff with accessing COVID-19
vaccinations and to promote uptake in care homes and supported living settings.
Experts on the social care working group of SAGE (a government advisory body)
advise that 80% of staff and 90% of residents need to be vaccinated to provide a
minimum level of protection against outbreaks of COVID-19. To date, 84.7% of staff
in older adult care homes and 93.4% of residents have received their vaccine
(England average 83.5% and 95.2%). In younger adult care homes, 81.4% of staff
and 93.2% of residents have been vaccinated (England average 79.8%/91.4%).
While vaccination uptake rates are good across Gloucestershire, there are still a
small number of care homes which do not have the required level of protection
needed to significantly reduce the risk of an outbreak. Gloucestershire County
Council and its partners continue to carry out targeted work with independent social
care providers to encourage and promote the uptake of the COVID-19 vaccine.
Events: Current Guidance
Step 3 of the Government’s Roadmap out of lockdown, which commenced on 17th
May, enabled both indoor and outdoor events to take place subject to meeting
COVID-secure requirements including social distancing.
This includes live
performances, cinemas, funfairs and sport events. Attendance must be limited to the
capacity of the venue allowing for the required level of social distancing (indoors rule
of 6 or two households, outdoor groups of up to 30). There is a cap of 1,000 people
or 50% of a venue’s capacity, whichever is lower at indoor events, and 4,000 people
or 50% of a site or venue’s capacity, whichever is lower at outdoor events.
Local Event Management
There is no requirement for event organisers to seek approval from local agencies to
hold events, unless they are using land or facilities owned or managed by local
5

Page 49

agencies. However, for larger events District Councils convene Safety Advisory
Groups (SAGs) which bring together key representatives such as environmental
health, highways and police, to review event plans and risk assessments and advise
on safety standards. During the pandemic District Authorities have worked more
closely than ever with event organisers to review risk assessments and event plans
to ensure they operate in line with covid security measures. This has included
holding more frequent SAG meetings and asking event organisers to present plans.
In addition, a weekly Tactical Enforcement Group (TEG), chaired by Gloucestershire
Constabulary, brings together key enforcement agencies and health and safety
specialists to discuss upcoming events, share intelligence and coordinate any
support required to maintain safety and reduce risk.
If there are concerns regarding an event, agencies have some enforcement powers
available to them which have been recently introduced under, The Health Protection
(Coronavirus, Restrictions) (Steps) (England) Regulations 2021. These tools allow
local authorities to take decisive action against premises that do not comply with
COVID-secure rules. These enable enforcement officers to issue improvement and
restriction notices to premises that are not meeting COVID-secure business
obligations. In addition, agencies can use existing powers under the Health and
Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and Health and Safety (Enforcing Authority)
Regulations 1989. Police also have powers to issue fines and to remove people
preventing compliance with the Covid regulations.
Events in Gloucestershire
Overall in Gloucestershire we have found event organisers to engage well with
district councils and partner agencies and we have many examples of events that
have been run very successfully, such as cycling sportives and farmers markets.
Many event organisers have decided to postpone or cancel events due to concerns
over the risk of transmission or due to the viability either financially or difficulty
sourcing suppliers.
If a planned event has raised concerns, agencies have worked together successfully
to gather evidence and intelligence (for example obtaining footage using body
cameras) and worked with event organisers using the ‘Four E’s’ – to engage, explain
and encourage before taking enforcement action. This has meant that we have only
needed to issue one notice that we intended to serve a direction to prohibit an event.
This was for the Stow Horse Fair in October when the risk of transmission was high,
the Stow Horse Fair in May was able to go ahead with support from local agencies to
mitigate risks.
Visitor Economy
The Visitor Economy working group was established in March 2021 to look at
additional control measures that could be introduced to enable safer tourism as
national restrictions ease over the summer months. The group brings together
representatives from district and county councils, police and the Local Economic
Partnership.
The group has focussed on outdoor public areas where there are likely to be high
visitor numbers but access is uncontrolled or there is limited control.
6

Page 50

The control measures being introduced aim to align to the stages of the roadmap.
Although there is some uncertainty as to how far restrictions will be eased, it is
anticipated that many measures will continue to be advised due to their role in
preventing and controlling the spread of viral infections generally.
Each of the six districts in Gloucestershire has received £50,000 from the Contain
Outbreak Management Fund to resource these measures, alongside separate
funding allocated for communications. The group also benefitted from the input of a
Behavioural Insights’ specialist, who discussed scenarios and provided ideas and
expertise on how to achieve the desired behaviour.
Some control measures were considered but discounted if the resource requirement,
impact on revenue and other negative consequences were considered to be
disproportionate to the relative benefit, for example closing or limiting car parking.
Each district is in the process of implementing the following:







Additional bins, waste collection and/or street cleaning
Additional public toilets (‘porta-loos’) and/or more frequent public toilet cleaning
Working closely with management organisations and businesses on risk
assessments and control measures
Signage such as on arrival in car parks, window wraps which utilise empty shop
fronts and have the added benefit of making them look more attractive
Working with neighbourhood police teams to monitor and advise the public
Utilising Community Protection Officers (aka Covid Marshals).

In addition, districts have come up with some innovative measures that respond to
their local needs, examples of these, including the locations of concern identified in
each district, have been summarised in the table below:
District
Stroud

Forest of
Dean
Cotswold

Gloucester

Cheltenham
Tewksbury

Locations of concern
Town Centres (Stroud, Dursley
and Wotton-under-Edge)
Various Beauty Spots (e,g,
Common Land at Coaley
Peak, Rodborough)
Forestry England attractions
Lydney Harbour
Puzzlewood
Cotswold Beach & Park
Cotswold Lakes
Bourton on the Water
Bibury
Tetbury
Lechlade on Thames
Moreton in the Marsh
The Quays
The Cross
Westgate Street

Examples of control measures
 Employed a dedicated SDC visitor website
content manager
 Film promoting less well-known areas to visit
and disperse visitors more

Montpelier Gardens and
Imperial Gardens
Town centre
Three town centres –
Winchcombe (Sudeley Castle),
Bishops Cleeve and






Eco-friendly signage




Put covid safety information on visitor maps
Messages on the safe and responsible disposal
of PPE
Visitor packs with hand sanitiser and face
masks
Supply starter sanitiser bottles to businesses









Using billboards and bollard coverings for
messages
Considering new handwash basin into indoor
market
Installing a mobile CCTV camera
Promoting ‘shop local’ messages
Supporting the local volunteer litter picking
movement by providing equipment and advice
Created a video showcasing examples of retail

7

Page 51

Tewksbury
Events such as village fetes



businesses operating effective control
measures
Monitoring spectator areas such as Cleve Hill
by Cheltenham Racecourse
Promoting ‘shop local’ messages.

 CONTAIN
Testing
Since the pandemic, there have been over 2,000,000 COVID-19 tests for people in
Gloucestershire. This includes PCR tests and LFD tests.
PCR tests involve taking a sample of fluids from deep in the nose and throat. It is
collected using a swab and so is sometimes called the “swab test”. It is analysed on
a machine which uses Reverse Transcription Polymerase Chain Reaction (RT-PCR)
and so it may also be called the “PCR test” which looks for genetic material of the
virus. This is the test which helps answer the question “do I currently have the virus?
Lateral Flow Device (LFD) tests are simple-to-use point of care solution for rapid
COVID-19 testing. This enables the identification and isolation of more asymptomatic
people who are at high risk of spreading COVID-19, while minimising disruption for
those whose test is negative. It is a 20 to 30-minute test that detects antigens
(surface proteins) from the SARS-CoV-2 virus through a throat and nose swab. The
test kit can be stored at room temperature and be processed without the requirement
for laboratory technology. Test subjects provide a sample by swabbing their nose
and throat. The sample is then prepared and tested through a trained test site
operator. The results are processed and results entered using a mobile app or online
portal. Test subjects are notified of results by text and email. As follow-up, people
with positive test results are instructed to self-isolate; local health protection teams
and NHS Test and Trace are notified.
LFD testing in schools - On 18 December the Department for Education (DfE) and
the Department for Health and Social Care (DHSC) published guidance on a
programme of mass testing for secondary schools and further education settings in
England. Whilst the approach has changed slightly since original publication, schools
testing has equated to approximately 30% of all COVID-19 testing in
Gloucestershire.
Whole Care Home testing - The national rollout of regular testing (retesting) for care
homes in England was announced on 6 July 2021. The whole care home testing
includes staff and residents. This equates to 23% of all testing in Gloucestershire.
Asymptomatic testing in the community - In December 2020, Gloucestershire County
Council worked with the Royal Agricultural University, Cirencester College and Deer
Park School to pilot the testing of asymptomatic students and staff using Lateral
Flow Devices (LFDs). During the 16 days that the Cirencester site was operational,
1,665 tests were carried out, with just two positive cases found.

8

Page 52

Since 13 January 2021, GCC has been operating an LFD asymptomatic testing
centre at the Friendship Café in Gloucester City. This was aimed initially at those
who live within walking distance of the testing centre and specifically those who
cannot reasonably work from home during the period of lockdown. Access was then
widened to anyone living or working in Gloucestershire.
After the Friendship Café site was established, three further asymptomatic testing
sites were opened in Cirencester, Tewkesbury and Cinderford. The four sites have
processed over 12,500 tests in total, with 38 positive cases found and potential
onward transmission by asymptomatic people prevented.
Pharmacies - In May 2021, GCC commissioned pharmacies to offer assisted
processing of LFD tests. Participating pharmacies offer the same service as the
asymptomatic testing centres but are much more accessible across the whole of
Gloucestershire and more cost effective. At the time of writing, 58 Gloucestershire
pharmacies have signed service specifications and are in the process of registering
and training to begin testing. As these come on line in early June, the four
asymptomatic testing centres have been stepping down their activity so that the
venues can begin to return to business as usual, serving their local communities and
testing becomes part of our daily routine, available from our local pharmacy.
Community Collect - In April 2021, LFD home testing kits were made more widely
available to the general public. Sites were established where people could collect
these home testing kits under this community collect model. Each of the four
asymptomatic testing sites have been offering home testing kits since the beginning
of April. Later, GCC and each of the District Councils offered community collect for
their staff and the community testing team began outreach activity at supermarkets,
high streets and outdoor events. Through this model, over 14,500 boxes of 7 test kits
have been distributed (as of 2nd June). A nationally procured pharmacy community
collect model was also established in April 2021. 107 pharmacies in Gloucester offer
LFD home testing kits through this model.
From June onwards, the community testing team will be increasing their outreach
activity, providing advice, guidance and home test kits out and about each day. Test
kits will also be available from Gloucestershire Libraries and in settings that support
vulnerable people, such as supported housing or substance misuse settings.
Contact Tracing
Contact Tracing is well established in Gloucestershire. The existing model is
currently being developed into a locally focused programme which allows for quick,
effective action and encourages increased adherence to self-isolation by both cases
and contacts of cases.
The local programme of contact tracing identifies people who have been in close
contact with someone who has tested positive for COVID-19. To contain the spread
of COVID-19, it is essential that both those testing positive and their close contacts
do not interact with others. They are asked to self-isolate for 10 days, even if they
have no symptoms, to prevent the chance of further spread of the virus.
Currently, the majority of people testing positive in Gloucestershire are contacted by
NHS Test and Trace contact tracers soon after their test result is available. Hard to
9

Page 53

reach cases are followed up by local contact tracers based in GCC’s Contact Centre
and the COVID-19 Hub. If there continue to be difficulties with contacting the cases,
the contact tracer will refer the case details onto a member of GFRS who will attempt
to contact the individual by visiting them at home.
The demands on the local contact tracing service has fluctuated:


Contact tracing calls

- 41 daily in January
- 1 or 2 daily in May



Call length

- approximately ½ - 1 hour



Requests for visits from GFRS- 128 per week in January
- 1 or 2 per week in May
Success
- almost 100% of cases complete contract tracing
- national team reaching approx.. 80% of cases
- local team picking up 20% of cases



However, there is now an opportunity to design a comprehensive and effective
contact tracing programme which includes support and guidance for everyone
testing positive across Gloucestershire, as well as ensuring that both cases and
contacts isolate as instructed. This new programme will combine a local contact
tracing model with a self-isolation service. It will encompass local, quick contact
tracing alongside wraparound support for effective self-isolation, offering flexibility to
provide enhanced surveillance of VOCs and support for surge testing.
The local Gloucestershire model will be carried out at a countywide level by the GCC
COVID-19 Hub and at a district level by a new district level COVID workforce. The
new COVID Response Officers will have a flexible role that will focus on contact
tracing, but also include supporting people to self-isolate through home visits,
welfare checks, signposting and referrals; carrying out enhanced surveillance
questionnaires for VOC/VUI contact tracing; assisting in the local testing offer;
providing capacity for delivering the surge plan where necessary; and supporting the
districts’ COVID Compliance Officers/COVID Recovery Assistants.
The officers are currently being employed an will be in post in June/July. A new
national Integrated Tracing System (ITS) for contact tracing is due to be launched on
21st July, by which time it is planned that the team of COVID Response Officers will
be trained and ready to take on their contact tracing role alongside their other COVID
responsibilities with the districts.
 RESPOND
The COVID-19 Hub
This team was established in order to respond to incidents, clusters and outbreaks
across the county. This involved recruiting a team of 10 staff and designing new
systems in order to monitor and record situations locally. The Hub is supported by
the Consultants in Public Health and is staffed 7 days a week from 8am – 6 pm.
The core role and function of the COVID-19 Hub is to take the public health lead in
COVID-19 local outbreak management. The Hub responds to incidents, clusters and
outbreaks of C19 in order to contain transmission in the Gloucestershire population,
by working with settings and partner agencies. Roles within the Hub focus on
recording, responding and supporting high-risk settings when a confirmed case is
10

Page 54

identified. This includes regular communication with partners such as Public Health
England, CCG colleagues and district councils in addition to regularly reviewing
operating procedures and updates to policy, legislation and national guidance.
In addition to the community-acquired cases, which do not require in-depth
involvement from the COVID-19 Hub, the Hub has dealt with a total of 1,413
outbreaks or incidents of COVID-19 in the last 16 months, affecting 7,454 people
directly (not including close contacts). These totals are composed of outbreaks
across various settings including the following:


Adult Social Care (including care homes, day centres and domiciliary care) – 542
outbreaks affecting 3,395 people



Education/Early Years – 504 outbreaks affecting 2,203 people



Workplaces – 158 outbreaks affecting 570 people

COVID Emergency Accommodation
Whilst numbers of rough sleepers have fluctuated during the pandemic, we have
sustained a significant reduction in numbers pre-Covid. This is a result of having
‘brought people in’, sustained engagement during Covid and successfully moved
them into longer term accommodation. At the end of May, 5 individuals remained in
emergency accommodation under legacy Community Emergency Accommodation
Placements (CEAP) placements
During the pandemic over 300 successful planned moves have taken place from
emergency accommodation into the wider pathway of housing (and support)
services. To date, the highest number of planned moves were to Accommodation
Based Support Services; followed by private rented accommodation; social housing;
accommodation with enhanced housing management services and accommodation
funded by the Next Steps Accommodation Programme (NSAP) (the latter two being
more recent additions to the pathway).
We continue to work in partnership with to create bespoke solutions for the
remaining core group of very entrenched repeat rough sleepers, with complex need
and multiple/entrenched trauma: drawing together senior commissioners from Mental
Health; Drugs & Alcohol and Housing services to look at specific needs for this
group.
The new NSAP properties and enhanced housing support services brought on
stream during the pandemic will provide the county with greater options targeted
specifically at supporting and accommodating rough sleepers into the longer-term.
Through Summer/Autumn 2021, we will have an opportunity to review our assertive
outreach service and needs from MHCLG’s Rough Sleeping Initiative funding to build
services which learn from our experience during the pandemic and adapt to the
greater understanding of our needs developed in this period.
Mental Health and What We Commissioned
Throughout the pandemic, the Council has been working with system partners to
respond to the impact on people’s mental health and wellbeing. A multi-agency
Mental Health and Wellbeing ‘cell’ was set up in April 2020 to help co-ordinate our
11

Page 55

local response. The ‘cell’ oversees a number of work-streams, including workforce
wellbeing and targeted communications (under the ‘Be Well Gloucestershire’
campaign).
The Council has also commissioned a number of additional mental health services to
extend the range of options available to people needing support. The new services,
which will remain in place until early 2022 include an anonymous open access
helpline for children and young people, free online counselling for 11-18 year olds
and over 18s, and 1:1 counselling for adults whose mental health has been more
severely impacted by the pandemic.
The cell is continuing to meet on a regular basis to share intelligence, monitor need
and demand, and plan what support will be needed into the recovery phase, with a
particular focus on those groups likely to be at highest risk of poor mental health.
COVID-19 Community Engagement and Community Champions
Community participation is crucial in a pandemic; the purpose of our programme is to
engage the local community to assist in the prevention of the spread of coronavirus
(Covid19).
With rising cases of COVID-19 in Gloucester City in autumn 2020, particularly within
the Barton and Tredworth areas, colleagues from Gloucestershire County Council
and Gloucester City Council formed a working group which aimed to curb the spread
of the Coronavirus infection.
Alongside the above, a COVID-19 Community Champion programme was initiated
by Gloucestershire County Council and early recruitment into the programme
focused on membership from residents of the Barton and Tredworth area.
There are currently over 150 Covid19 Community Champions on the mailing list and
the Champions have worked collaboratively with Gloucestershire County Council
and key partners by providing intelligence from their communities and also
disseminating key information to their communities; contributing to preventing the
spread of Covid19 in their communities.
Our Programme aims to:
 Listen and understand community perspectives and barriers to adhering to
guidance
 Identify and address Covid19 related rumours and misinformation
 Provide reliable health information, aimed at preventing and containing Covid19
in Gloucestershire communities (avoiding a one size fits all approach)
 Disseminate Key Covid19 messages within communities
 Work with other parts of the Prevent and Contain Strategy – including Covid
Protection Officers, the Covid Hub and District Council partners to reduce
confusion for the public and duplication
 Strengthen trust between communities and public sector services
What we did:


Wrote to residents of the Barton and Tredworth area of Gloucester, including a
booklet which had the letter translated into 8 languages (Arabic, Czech, Farsi,
Gujarati, Hindi, Polish, Sylheti, Urdu, Polish) widely spoken within the community
12

Page 56





Prepared audio recordings in other languages widely spoken in the area;
messages were circulated via relevant WhatsApp groups and also via audio
transmitters into homes for those who belong to the Muslim community
Provision of posters/leaflets in English and relevant other languages to local
shops re: community testing, social distances, hands face space
Prepared appropriate information for the Muslim Community via the Mosques
o Explaining the implications of the restrictions and what they mean on a
practical level for the community
o Encouraging uptake of vaccination and reiterating guidelines in the
approach to Ramadan
o Provision of posters/leaflets in English and relevant other languages to
local shops re: community testing, social distances, hands face space



Created a dedicated resource for BAME communities:
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/COVID-19-information-andadvice/information-and-resources-for-bame-communities/



Hosted Covid19 Webinars specifically for:
o Residents of the Matson, Robinswood and Whitehead areas of Gloucester
o Polish community
o Other webinars included the following topics:
 Covid and the BAME population
 Community testing
 Long Covid



Contribution to communications via locally used outlets
o Articles for the Friendship Cafe: Covid19 vaccinations Myths and
Facts/
o Attendance at the BAME Carers meeting (Carers Hub) raising
awareness of community testing facility in Friendship Café and
encouraging community testing

5. Impact and Recovery: Taking Action to Mitigate the Long-term Impacts of
COVID-19 on Health Inequalities
COVID-19 has exposed and amplified the health inequalities that already existed in
the country. It has presented a new imperative for effective action to reduce health
inequalities – and an opportunity to ‘build back fairer’1.
Whilst Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing Board (GHWB), the ICS Board and
member organisations are already taking forward multiple programmes of work to
address health inequalities there is a need to refocus these efforts in the light of
Covid recovery and learning from the pandemic and ensure we can use this
opportunity to create a coherent ‘whole system’ approach to deliver long- term
sustainable change.
To this end Gloucestershire Health and Wellbeing and ICS Boards have agreed to
convene a countywide Health Inequalities Panel to coordinate the developing health
inequalities agenda (first meeting to be held in June). In addition, Covid Outbreak
Management Funding (COMF) has been secured for two dedicated health
13

Page 57

inequalities posts (fixed term to March 2023) to drive the work forwards (recruitment
is underway).
Priorities going forwards include:
 Reinstating the commissioned services within Public Health that have been
impacted by Covid19
 Activities with a clear health and care service focus (including delivery against
NHS England’s ‘five urgent actions’ on health inequalities)
 Strengthening action on the wider social, behavioural, environmental and
economic determinants of health
 Continuing to implement recommendations from the 2020 Annual Report of the
Director of Public Health, to help mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on ethnic
minorities
 Maximising the synergies across other strategic priorities, including the Health
and Wellbeing Board’s priorities, and with the equity, diversity and inclusion
agenda.
 Progressing work on number of ‘enabling’ activities including a Health Inequalities
Toolkit to equip those acting to reduce health inequalities with the tools to do so
effectively; and the development of a local ‘anchor institutions’ approach to
supporting the economy and reducing health inequalities.
6. Summary
The work of the PWC team and our partners to prevent, respond, contain and
monitor COVID-19 continues in earnest, as new cases arise and variants are
identified. We will continue to respond as effectively as possible and support the
recovery of the local population and economy. However, we recognise the
significant impact and challenges Gloucestershire is facing and we will utilise this
opportunity to support our communities to build back fairer and increase resilience
for any future similar events that might occur in our lifetimes.

14

Page 58

$GXOW6RFLDO&DUHDQG&RPPXQLWLHV6FUXWLQ\
&RPPLWWHH
4XDUWHU5HSRUWLQJ

7KHIROORZLQJVFRUHFDUGVDUHHQFORVHG

Page 59

.H\WR6\PEROV
$GXOW6RFLDO&DUH3HUIRUPDQFH
3UHYHQWLRQ:HOOEHLQJDQG&RPPXQLWLHV
3XEOLF3URWHFWLRQ3DUNLQJ /LEUDULHV
6WUDWHJLF5LVN5HJLVWHU6XPPDU\

3DJH1R



7
8

7KLVUHSRUWKDVEHHQSUHSDUHGE\WKH3HUIRUPDQFH ,PSURYHPHQW7HDPXVLQJGDWDXSWR

Agenda Item 5
1

ĆȺ͊˝ƃˆȖ˝ʩ̹
3HUIRUPDQFHEHWWHUWKDQWDUJHW

5HSRUWLQJ%DVLV
<HDUWR'DWH

3HUIRUPDQFHDFFXPXODWHGRYHUWKH\HDU

5ROOLQJ<HDU

$YHUDJHSHUIRUPDQFHRYHUDPRQWK
SHULRG
3HUIRUPDQFHPHDVXUHGRQFHD\HDU

$QQXDO

3HUIRUPDQFHZRUVHWKDQWDUJHW
3HUIRUPDQFHVLJQLILFDQWO\ZRUVHWKDQWDUJHW
1RLQIRUPDWLRQ
0LVVLQJWDUJHW
1RYDOXH

/DWHVW
4XDUWHU
6QDSVKRW

3HUIRUPDQFHWKLVTXDUWHU

)RUHFDVW

3UHGLFWHGSRVLWLRQDWWKHHQGRIWKH\HDU

9DOXH,QFUHDVLQJ 6PDOOHULV%HWWHU
9DOXH'HFUHDVLQJ 6PDOOHULV%HWWHU

3HUIRUPDQFHDWDSDUWLFXODUSRLQWLQWLPH

9DOXH,QFUHDVLQJ %LJJHULV%HWWHU
9DOXH'HFUHDVLQJ %LJJHULV%HWWHU
1RFKDQJH
%LJJHULVEHWWHU $ELJJHUYDOXHIRUWKLVPHDVXUHLVJRRG

Page 60

6PDOOHULV
EHWWHU
3ODQLVEHVW

$VPDOOHUYDOXHIRUWKLVPHDVXUHLVJRRG
:KHUHLWLVEHVWIRUSHUIRUPDQFHWREHRQWDUJHWUDWKHUWKDQDERYHRUEHORZ

.H\WR6\PEROV5LVN
7KH*ORXFHVWHUVKLUH5LVN0DWUL[
ZŝƐŬ
>ŝŬĞůŝŚŽŽĚ
ůŵŽƐƚ
ĐĞƌƚĂŝŶ
;ϱͿ
>ŝŬĞůǇ
;ϰͿ
WƌŽďĂďůĞ
;ϯͿ
WŽƐƐŝďůĞ
;ϮͿ
ZĂƌĞ
;ϭͿ

/ŵƉĂĐƚͬŽŶƐĞƋƵĞŶĐĞ
ϯ
ϰ
DŽĚĞƌĂƚĞ
DĂũŽƌ

ϱ
ƌŝƚŝĐĂů

5LVN5DWLQJ
FDOFXODWHGE\PXOWLSO\LQJWKH,PSDFWZLWK
WKH/LNHOLKRRGRIHDFKULVN

ϭ
/ŶƐŝŐŶŝĨŝĐĂŶƚ

Ϯ
DŝŶŽƌ

ϱ

ϭϬ

ϭϱ

ϮϬ

Ϯϱ

/HYHORI
5LVN

6FRUH

ϰ

ϴ

ϭϮ

ϭϲ

ϮϬ

ϯ

ϲ

ϵ

ϭϮ

ϭϱ

/RZ
0RGHUDWH
+LJK


±
±

Ϯ

ϰ

ϲ

ϴ

ϭϬ

ϭ

Ϯ

ϯ

ϰ

ϱ

2

$GXOW6RFLDO&DUH3HUIRUPDQFH
&OOU.DWK\:LOOLDPV&OOU&DUROH$OODZD\0DUWLQ
(PSOR\PHQW 6HWWOHG$FFRPPRGDWLRQ
4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV$JDLQVWD7DUJHW
*RRG
3HUIRUPDQFH
+LJK/RZ
RI$GXOWVUHFHLYLQJVHFRQGDU\0HQWDO
%LJJHULV%HWWHU
+HDOWKVHUYLFHVLQVHWWOHG
DFFRPPRGDWLRQ
RI$GXOWVZLWK/HDUQLQJ'LVDELOLWLHVLQ
%LJJHULV%HWWHU
VHWWOHGDFFRPPRGDWLRQ

5HSRUWLQJ
%DVLV

4WU0DU

4WU-XQ

4WU6HS

7DUJHW'HF


4WU'HF

&RPPHQWV'HF

&RPSDUDWRU
*URXS

4XDUWHUO\













0RQWKO\













5HDEOHPHQW 3UHYHQWDWLYH
4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV1R7DUJHW
*RRG
3HUIRUPDQFH
+LJK/RZ

Page 61

RIFOLHQWVZLWKPRUHWKDQHSLVRGHRIUHDEOHPHQW
6PDOOHULV%HWWHU
LQWKHODVWPRQWKV
RIFOLHQWVZKRQHHGQRORQJWHUPFDUHDIWHUWKHLU
%LJJHULV%HWWHU
SHULRGRIUHDEOHPHQW

5HSRUWLQJ
%DVLV

4WU'HF

/DWHVW
4XDUWHU
/DWHVW
4XDUWHU

4WU0DU

4WU-XQ

4WU6HS

4WU'HF

&RPPHQWV'HF

&RPSDUDWRU
*URXS











QD











QD

$GPLVVLRQV 7UDQVIHUV
4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV$JDLQVWD7DUJHW

3HUPDQHQWDGPLVVLRQVWR
UHVLGHQWLDO QXUVLQJFDUHKRPHVSHU
SRSXODWLRQ
3HUPDQHQWDGPLVVLRQVDJHGWR
UHVLGHQWLDO QXUVLQJFDUHKRPHVSHU
SRSXODWLRQ

*RRG
3HUIRUPDQFH
+LJK/RZ

5HSRUWLQJ
%DVLV

6PDOOHULV%HWWHU

5ROOLQJ<HDU















6PDOOHULV%HWWHU

5ROOLQJ<HDU















4WU'HF

4WU0DU

4WU-XQ

4WU6HS

4WU'HF

7DUJHW'HF


&RPPHQWV'HF

&RPSDUDWRU
*URXS

4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV$JDLQVWD7DUJHW ,Q$UUHDUV

'HOD\HGWUDQVIHUVRIFDUHIURPKRVSLWDO
GXHWR$GXOW6RFLDO&DUHSHU
SRSXODWLRQ

*RRG
3HUIRUPDQFH
+LJK/RZ

5HSRUWLQJ
%DVLV

6PDOOHULV%HWWHU

5ROOLQJ<HDU

4WU6HS


4WU'HF


4WU0DU


4WU-XQ

4WU6HS

7DUJHW6HS



&RPPHQWV6HS
'72&0HDVXUHVZHUHVXVSHQGHGIURP0DUFKGXHWR&29,'

&RPSDUDWRU
*URXS


3

/RQJ7HUP&DUH
4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV$JDLQVWD7DUJHW

RI6HUYLFH8VHUVZKRKDYHKDGDUHYLHZUH
DVVHVVPHQWRIWKHLUQHHGVZLWKLQWKHODVWPRQWKV
$YHUDJHQXPEHURIZHHNVDQLQGLYLGXDOZDLWVIRUD
&DUHUV$VVHVVPHQW

*RRG
3HUIRUPDQFH
+LJK/RZ

5HSRUWLQJ
%DVLV

%LJJHULV%HWWHU

6QDSVKRW













QD

6PDOOHULV%HWWHU

6QDSVKRW













QD

4WU'HF

4WU0DU

4WU-XQ

4WU6HS

7DUJHW'HF


4WU'HF

&RPPHQWV'HF

&RPSDUDWRU
*URXS

$GXOW6DIHJXDUGLQJ
4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV$JDLQVWD7DUJHW
*RRG
5HSRUWLQJ
3HUIRUPDQFH
%DVLV
+LJK/RZ
RI6HFWLRQHQTXLULHVWKLVTXDUWHUZKHUHWKHULVNZDV %LJJHULV
UHGXFHGRUUHPRYHG
%HWWHU

/DWHVW4XDUWHU

4WU'HF

4WU0DU



4WU-XQ



4WU6HS



4WU'HF



7DUJHW4WU
'HF



&RPPHQWV4WU'HF

&RPSDUDWRU
*URXS





Page 62

/HDUQLQJ'LVDELOLWLHV

RI$GXOWVZLWK/HDUQLQJ'LVDELOLWLHVLQ(PSOR\PHQW

$QQXDO1R7DUJHW
*RRG
5HSRUWLQJ
3HUIRUPDQFH
%DVLV
+LJK/RZ
%LJJHULV
%HWWHU

$QQXDO

4WU0DU

4WU0DU



4WU0DU



4WU0DU



4WU0DU



&RPPHQWV0DU



&RPSDUDWRU
*URXS


$GXOW6RFLDO&DUH$6&2)
$QQXDO7UHQG$QDO\VLV1R7DUJHW <HDULQ$UUHDUV
*RRG
5HSRUWLQJ
3HUIRUPDQFH
%DVLV
+LJK/RZ
6RFLDOFDUHUHSRUWHGTXDOLW\RIOLIH
&DUHUUHSRUWHG4XDOLW\RI/LIH

%LJJHULV
%HWWHU
%LJJHULV
%HWWHU

4WU0DU

4WU0DU

4WU0DU

4WU0DU

&RPPHQWV0DU

&RPSDUDWRU
*URXS

$QQXDO











$QQXDO











4

3UHYHQWLRQ:HOOEHLQJDQG&RPPXQLWLHV
&OOU7LP+DUPDQ
4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV$JDLQVWD7DUJHW 4XDUWHULQ$UUHDUV
*RRG
5HSRUWLQJ
3HUIRUPDQFH
%DVLV
+LJK/RZ
RISUHJQDQWVPRNHUV
DFKLHYLQJDZHHNTXLW

%LJJHULV
%HWWHU

3URSRUWLRQRIDGXOW
DOFRKROPLVXVHUVZKR
%LJJHULV
VXFFHVVIXOO\FRPSOHWHG
%HWWHU
WUHDWPHQWDQGGLGQRW
UHSUHVHQWZLWKLQPRQWKV
RIFRPSOHWLRQ
3URSRUWLRQRIDOO2SLDWH
8VHUVLQWUHDWPHQWZKR
VXFFHVVIXOO\FRPSOHWHG
%LJJHULV
WUHDWPHQWDQGGLGQRW
%HWWHU
UHSUHVHQWZLWKLQPRQWKV
RIFRPSOHWLRQ

Page 63

3URSRUWLRQRIDOO1RQ
2SLDWH8VHUVLQ
WUHDWPHQWQRW
UHSUHVHQWLQJPRQWKV
DIWHUFRPSOHWLRQ

%LJJHULV
%HWWHU

4WU6HS

4WU'HF

4WU0DU

4WU-XQ

7DUJHW4WU
6HS

4WU6HS

&RPPHQWV4WU6HS

/DWHVWTXDUWHU













6QDSVKRW













6QDSVKRW
/DWHVW
4XDUWHU

/DWHVW
4XDUWHU

























&RPSDUDWRU

7KHQXPEHURISUHJQDQWZRPHQDFKLHYLQJDZHHNTXLWZDV

+/6
3+(

QD



3HUIRUPDQFHKDVVOLJKWO\UHGXFHGLQWKLVDUHDDQGGXHWR
FRYLGZHDUHOLNHO\WRVHHIXUWKHUUHGXFWLRQVLQSHUIRUPDQFH
DFURVVQH[WTXDUWHUV7KLVLVGXHWRNHHSLQJVHUYLFHXVHUVLQ
WUHDWPHQWIRUFOLQLFDOVDIHW\GXULQJWKHSDQGHPLFIXUWKHU
VXFFHVVIXOFRPSOHWLRQVZRXOGEHUHTXLUHGWREULQJ
SHUIRUPDQFHLQWRWKHXSSHUTXDUWLOHRI/$FRPSDUDWRU
IDPLOLHV
3HUIRUPDQFHKDVVOLJKWO\UHGXFHGLQWKLVDUHDDQGGXHWR
FRYLGZHDUHOLNHO\WRVHHIXUWKHUUHGXFWLRQVLQSHUIRUPDQFH
DFURVVQH[WTXDUWHUV7KLVLVGXHWRNHHSLQJVHUYLFHXVHUVLQ
WUHDWPHQWIRUFOLQLFDOVDIHW\GXULQJWKHSDQGHPLF
IXUWKHUVXFFHVVIXOFRPSOHWLRQVZRXOGEHUHTXLUHGWREULQJ
SHUIRUPDQFHLQWRWKHXSSHUTXDUWLOHRI/$FRPSDUDWRU
IDPLOLHV





$QQXDO7UHQG$QDO\VLV1R7DUJHW
*RRG
3HUIRUPDQFH
+LJK/RZ

5HSRUWLQJ
%DVLV

4WU6HS

4WU6HS

4WU6HS

4WU6HS

5HFHSWLRQ&KLOGUHQ
RYHUZHLJKWLQFOXGLQJ
REHVLW\

6PDOOHULV
%HWWHU

$QQXDO









<HDU&KLOGUHQ
RYHUZHLJKWLQFOXGLQJ
REHVLW\

6PDOOHULV
%HWWHU

$QQXDO









4WU6HS

&RPPHQWV4WU6HS

7KLVODWHVWGDWDLVIRUDFDGHPLF\HDU7KH1&03
SURJUDPPHZDVSDXVHGLQUHVSRQVHWR&RYLGDQGWKH
VXEVHTXHQWSXEOLVKHGGDWD UHOHDVHGGXULQJ4 KDV
 EHHQGHHPHGVXIILFLHQWIRUSXEOLFDWLRQEXWXQUHOLDEOHIRU
EHQFKPDUNLQJSXUSRVHV,WLVDQWLFLSDWHGWKDWWKH
PHDVXUHPHQWSURJUDPPHZLOOQRWEHUHLQVWDWHGXQWLOHDUO\

'DWDVKRZQKHUHLVIRUWKHDFDGHPLF\HDU
*ORXFHVWHUVKLUHLVLQWKHXSSHUPLGGOHTXDUWLOHRIWKH
 FRPSDUDWRUJURXS1&03GDWDIRUWKLVLQGLFDWRUZDVGHHPHG
UHOLDEOHDWSXEOLFDWLRQDQGWKHFRPSDULVRQPHDVXUHLVPDGH
DJDLQVWRQO\WKRVHFRPSDUDWRUVZLWKUHOLDEOHGDWD Q 

&RPSDUDWRU



5

7KUHH<HDU$YHUDJH7UHQG$QDO\VLV$JDLQVWD7DUJHW
*RRG
5HSRUWLQJ
3HUIRUPDQFH
%DVLV
+LJK/RZ

6XLFLGHUDWHSHU
3RSXODWLRQ

6PDOOHULV
%HWWHU

<HDU
$YHUDJH

4WU'HF




4WU'HF




4WU'HF




4WU'HF




4WU'HF




7DUJHW4WU
'HF



&RPPHQWV4WU'HF
7KHILJXUHUHSRUWHGFRYHUVWKHWKUHH\HDUSHULRG  
7KH*ORXFHVWHUVKLUHUDWHLVLQOLQHZLWKWKHQDWLRQDODYHUDJH
DQGKDVUHPDLQHGUHODWLYHO\VWHDG\VLQFHWKH
UHSRUWLQJSHULRG7KH*ORXFHVWHUVKLUHVXLFLGHSUHYHQWLRQ
VWUDWHJ\LVGXHWREHUHIUHVKHGLQDQGZLOOEHLQIRUPHG
E\WKHILQGLQJVRIWKHVXLFLGHDXGLW FRYHULQJGHDWKVIURP
VXLFLGHEHWZHHQDQG 

&RPSDUDWRU



Page 64
6

3XEOLF3URWHFWLRQ3DUNLQJ /LEUDULHV
&OOU'DYH1RUPDQ
)LUH 5HVFXH
4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV$JDLQVWD7DUJHW
*RRG
5HSRUWLQJ
3HUIRUPDQFH
%DVLV
+LJK/RZ
1XPEHURI6DIHDQG:HOO
YLVLWVXQGHUWDNHQ

4WU'HF

4WU0DU

4WU-XQ

4WU6HS

7DUJHW4WU
'HF

4WU'HF

&RPPHQWV4WU'HF

/DWHVW
4XDUWHU













RI6DIHDQG:HOOYLVLWV
%LJJHULV
XQGHUWDNHQWRWKRVHLQKLJK
%HWWHU
ULVNJURXSV

/DWHVW
4XDUWHU













1XPEHURI6DIHDQG:HOO
%LJJHULV
YLVLWVXQGHUWDNHQSHU
%HWWHU
SRSXODWLRQ +)6&

/DWHVW
4XDUWHU













1XPEHURI$FFLGHQWDO
'ZHOOLQJ)LUHV

6PDOOHULV
%HWWHU

/DWHVW
4XDUWHU













$YHUDJH5HVSRQVHWLPHVWR 6PDOOHULV
GZHOOLQJILUHV
%HWWHU

/DWHVW
4XDUWHU









Page 65

%LJJHULV
%HWWHU

7KHPRYHEDFNLQWRDORFNGRZQLQ4UHVXOWHGLQVOLJKWO\IHZHUUHIHUUDOV
EHLQJPDGHWRWKH6HUYLFH7KHIXOOWLPH&6$VIRFXVVHGRQYHU\KLJKULVN
UHIHUUDOVDQGWKHZKROHWLPHZDWFKHVEHJDQWRXQGHUWDNH6DIHDQG:HOO
PRUHUHJXODUO\ZKLFKLQFUHDVHGWKHQXPEHURIYLVLWVFRPSOHWHG7KH
6HUYLFHLVFRPSOHWLQJXSWRRIDOOUHIHUUDOVHDFKPRQWK
,QOLQHZLWK1)&&6WUDWHJLF,QWHQWLRQY*)56LVXQGHUWDNLQJ6DIHDQG
:HOOYLVLWVIRUSHRSOHLGHQWLILHGDV+LJK)LUH5LVN7KLVFDWHJRU\ZRXOGPHHW
WKHGHILQLWLRQLQWKHQHZ*)56ULVNPDWUL[RIKLJKDQGKLJKLPPHGLDWH:H
KDYHVHHQDQLQFUHDVHLQYXOQHUDELOLW\GXULQJWKHSDQGHPLFZKLFKKDV
PHDQWWKDWDQLQFUHDVLQJRIUHIHUUDOVDUHLQKLJKULVNJURXSV
7KHPRYHEDFNLQWRDORFNGRZQLQ4UHVXOWHGLQVOLJKWO\IHZHUUHIHUUDOV
EHLQJPDGHWRWKH6HUYLFH7KHIXOOWLPH&6$VIRFXVVHGRQYHU\KLJKULVN
UHIHUUDOVDQGWKHZKROHWLPHZDWFKHVEHJDQWRXQGHUWDNH6DIHDQG:HOO
PRUHUHJXODUO\ZKLFKLQFUHDVHGWKHQXPEHURIYLVLWVFRPSOHWHG7KH
6HUYLFHLVFRPSOHWLQJXSWRRIDOOUHIHUUDOVHDFKPRQWK
,QFLGHQWVUHPDLQEHWWHUWKDQIRUHFDVWDQGRXUFRPSDUDWRUJURXS
%HWWHUWKDQWDUJHW
7KHUHKDVEHHQDVWDUNLQFUHDVHLQRXUDYHUDJHUHVSRQVHWLPHWRGZHOOLQJ
ILUHVLQ47KLVLVSDUWO\GXHWRLQFLGHQWVKDYLQJDJHRJUDSKLFDOORFDWLRQ
WKDWKDVDSUHGHWHUPLQHGUXQWLPHRIRYHUWKHPLQXWHWDUJHW2QHRI
WKHVHLQFLGHQWVKDGDUXQWLPHRIPLQXWHV,QDOOFDVHVRXUDSSOLDQFHV
PDWFKHGWKHSUHGLFWHGUXQWLPHEXWWKLVZLOOQRQHWKHOHVVKDYHDQDGYHUVH
HIIHFWRQWKHDYHUDJHUHVSRQVHWLPHLQ4

/LEUDULHV
4XDUWHUO\7UHQG$QDO\VLV1R7DUJHW
*RRG
5HSRUWLQJ
3HUIRUPDQFH
%DVLV
+LJK/RZ
1XPEHURIOLJKWWRXFK
EXVLQHVVLQWHUDFWLRQV
VXSSRUWHGE\WKH*URZWK
+XEV

%LJJHULV
%HWWHU

<HDUWR'DWH

4WU'HF



4WU0DU



4WU-XQ

4WU6HS



4WU'HF



&RPPHQWV4WU'HF



7

6WUDWHJLF5LVN6XPPDU\
6WUDWHJLF5LVN2UJDQLVDWLRQDO&KDQJH3URJUDPPHV 1HZ4WU
5HI

65

5LVN

2ZQHU

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU-XQ

,QKHUHQW5LVN

3URYLGHUIDLOXUHVUHVXOWLQWKHFRXQFLOEHLQJXQDEOHWRDFKLHYHLWV
6FRWW6DUDK
VWUDWHJLFREMHFWLYHV

+LJK

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU6HS

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

'LUHFWLRQRI
7UDYHO

0LWLJDWLQJ$FWLRQV
&RYLGKDVH[DFHUEDWHGWKHULVNDVVRFLDWHGZLWK
SURYLGHUIDLOXUHWKHVHLQFOXGHILQDQFLDOULVNIURP
UHGXFHGSODFHPHQWVDQGSDFNDJHVIRUQHZVHUYLFH
XVHUVVHOIIXQGHUVWKHLPSDFWRILQFUHDVHGORVVRI
VHUYLFHXVHUVVHUYLFHXVHUVIURP&RYLGDVZHOO
DVWKHDELOLW\WRGHOLYHUVDIHOHYHOVRIFDUHZLWK
UHGXFHGZRUNIRUFH VLFNQHVVDEVHQFHVKLHOGLQJ
FDULQJUHVSRQVLELOLWLHV ,QWHJUDWHG&RPPLVVLRQLQJ
%URNHUDJHDUHZRUNLQJDORQJVLGHSURYLGHUVDGXOW
VRFLDOFDUH&+&VDIHJXDUGLQJFROOHDJXHV&4&DQG
RWKHUVWRPDQDJHVSHFLILFULVNV

+LJK

6WUDWHJLF5LVN6DIHJXDUGLQJ&KLOGUHQ <RXQJ3HRSOHDQG$GXOWV
5HI

65

5LVN

2ZQHU

)DLOXUHWRSURWHFWYXOQHUDEOHDGXOWVLQ*ORXFHVWHUVKLUHIURP
DEXVHQHJOHFWLQVLWXDWLRQVWKDWSRWHQWLDOO\FRXOGKDYHEHHQ
SUHGLFWHGDQGSUHYHQWHG

6FRWW6DUDK

,QKHUHQW5LVN

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU0DU

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU-XQ

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU6HS

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

'LUHFWLRQRI
7UDYHO

0LWLJDWLQJ$FWLRQV
6DIHJXDUGLQJ$GXOWVWHDPFRQWLQXHVWRVFUHHQDQG
WULDJHDOOFRQFHUQVUDLVHGZLWK*&&7KH
6DIHJXDUGLQJ$GXOWV%RDUGLVFXUUHQWO\XQGHUWDNLQJ
6DIHJXDUGLQJ$GXOWVUHYLHZVWRSURPRWHIXUWKHU
OHDUQLQJDFURVVWKHPXOWLDJHQF\SDUWQHUVKLSLQDGXOW
VDIHJXDUGLQJSUDFWLFH7KH%RDUGFRQWLQXHVWRPHHW
TXDUWHUO\DQGDOOVXEJURXSVDUHPHHWLQJUHJXODUO\
YLDYLUWXDOSODWIRUPV

0RGHUDWH

6WUDWHJLF5LVN6DIHJXDUGLQJ&KLOGUHQ <RXQJ3HRSOHDQG$GXOWV 1HZ4XDUWHU

Page 66

5HI

65

5LVN

2ZQHU

8QDEOHWRVXSSRUWDOOWKRVHZKRFDQWROLYHLQGHSHQGHQWO\DW
KRPHEHFDXVHGHPDQGIRUKRPHFDUHVHUYLFHVRXWVWULSV
DYDLODEOHFDSDFLW\5HVXOWLQJLQWKHUHOLDQFHRQWHPSRUDU\
UHVSLWHDOWHUQDWLYHEHGEDVHGFDUHLQOLHXRIKRPHFDUH

6FRWW6DUDK

,QKHUHQW5LVN

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU0DU

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU-XQ

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU6HS

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

'LUHFWLRQRI
7UDYHO

0LWLJDWLQJ$FWLRQV
:HFRQWLQXHWRGHYHORS+RPH)LUVWZLWKWKH/HDG
3URYLGHU*+&LQRUGHUWRPD[LPLVHKRPHEDVHG
SDFNDJHVIRUDOORIWKRVHZKRQHHGWKHP:KHUHZH
GRQRWKDYHWKHFDSDFLW\ZLWKLQWKHVHUYLFHWKHQ*+&
DUHZRUNLQJZLWK:LQWHU$OOLDQFHRISURYLGHUVZKRDUH
SURYLGLQJFDUHKRXUVWREROVWHUWKHH[LVWLQJVHUYLFH
:LWKSHRSOHFRPLQJKRPHZLWKPRUHDFXLW\WKH
DVVHVVHGSDFNDJHVDUHODUJHUEXW*+&ZLOOZRUNWR
EULQJWKHPGRZQRQFHWKH\DUHDWKRPHZKHUHWKHLU
QHHGVFDQGUDPDWLFDOO\UHGXFH:LWKWKHGHYHORSPHQW
RIWKH7UDQVIHURI&DUH%XUHDXZKLFKWULDJHVSDWLHQWV
DVWKH\DUHGLVFKDUJHGPRVWSHRSOHZKRQHHGDEHG
EDVHGVHUYLFHZLOOWUDQVIHUWRRQH&RPPXQLW\
UHIHUUDOVDPRXQWIRURIWKHFXUUHQWEXVLQHVVEXW
*+&DUHVWLOODEOHWRPHHWWKHGHPDQGIRUWKHVH
SDFNDJHV&29,'LVDIIHFWLQJWKHUDWHRIUHIHUUDOV
PDNLQJWKHPDUWLILFLDOO\ORZKRZHYHUVR
FRPPLVVLRQHUVZLOOH[WHQGWKH:LQWHU$OOLDQFHVFKHPH
WRFRYHURIIJDSVLQSURYLVLRQLIGHPDQGRXWVWULSV
VXSSO\*HQHUDOSDFNDJHVRIFDUHDUHVWLOOEHLQJ
VXSSRUWHGE\SURYLGHUV:KHUHWKHUHKDYHEHHQ
SURYLGHULVVXHVFRPPLVVLRQHUVKDYHEHHQDEOHWR
ILQGDOWHUQDWLYHSURYLVLRQ

0RGHUDWH

6WUDWHJLF5LVN6DIHJXDUGLQJ&KLOGUHQ <RXQJ3HRSOHDQG$GXOWV 1HZ4XDUWHU
5HI

65

5LVN
5LVNRIOHJDODFWLRQEHLQJWDNHQDJDLQVWWKH/RFDO$XWKRULW\GXH
WRIDLOXUHWRFRPSOHWHD'HSULYDWLRQRI/LEHUW\DVVHVVPHQW
ZLWKLQWKHVWDWHGWLPHOLQHV6LQFHDVLJQLILFDQWDQGVXGGHQ
FKDQJHLQWKHODZGXHWRD6XSUHPH&RXUW-XGJHPHQWLQ0DUFK
WKHUHLVDQH[FHVVLYHO\KLJKGHPDQGIRUEHVWLQWHUHVW
DVVHVVPHQWVWREHFDUULHGRXWIRU'HSULYDWLRQRI/LEHUW\ 'R/6
DXWKRULVDWLRQV

2ZQHU

6FRWW6DUDK

,QKHUHQW5LVN

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU-XQ

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU6HS

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

0RGHUDWH

'LUHFWLRQRI
7UDYHO

0LWLJDWLQJ$FWLRQV
7KH'R/6VHUYLFHFRQWLQXHVWRSULRULWLVHDOO
DSSOLFDWLRQVLQOLQHZLWK$'$66JXLGDQFH7ZRQHZ
SUDFWLWLRQHUVKDYHUHFHQWO\EHHQUHFUXLWHGZKLFKZLOO
DVVLVWLQDGGUHVVLQJWKHEDFNORJRIDSSOLFDWLRQVDQGLQ
SUHSDULQJIRUWKHLPSOHPHQWDWLRQRIWKH0HQWDO
&DSDFLW\ $PHQGPHQW $FWLQ$SULO

8

6WUDWHJLF5LVN(PHUJHQF\5HVSRQVH %XVLQHVV&RQWLQXLW\7KUHDWV
5HI

65

5LVN

2ZQHU

)DLOXUHRIWKH&RXQFLORUDNH\SDUWQHUWRHIIHFWLYHO\UHVSRQGWR
DPDMRULQFLGHQWVXFKDVIORRGLQJWKDWUHVXOWVLQFRPPXQLW\
GLVUXSWLRQDQGIDLOXUHWRUHWXUQWRQRUPDOZLWKLQUHTXLUHG
WLPHVFDOHV

%RZFRFN
:D\QH

,QKHUHQW5LVN

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU0DU

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU-XQ

0RGHUDWH

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU6HS

+LJK

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

'LUHFWLRQRI
7UDYHO

0LWLJDWLQJ$FWLRQV
:KLOVWVHDVRQDOLQFOHPHQWZHDWKHUVWLOOSRVHVDULVN
WKHUHFHQWORFDOLVHGIORRGLQJZDVPDQDJHGZLWKLQ
SODQQLQJJXLGHOLQHVDQGWKHLPSDFWZDVPLQLPLVHG
$OWKRXJKVHYHUDOSURSHUWLHVVXIIHUHGIORRGLQJDQG
URDGVFORVHGWKHUHZDVDFRRUGLQDWHGUHVSRQVHZKLFK
VXSSRUWHGFRPPXQLWLHVDQGSULRULWLVHGDQGSURWHFWHG
WKHYXOQHUDEOH7KHUHVSRQVHWRWKLVKDVDOUHDG\EHHQ
GHEULHIHGDQGUHYLHZHGDQGIXUWKHUFKDQJHVWRWKH
SDUWQHUVKLSUHVSRQVHSURWRFROVXSGDWHGDQG
VWUHQJWKHQHG

0RGHUDWH

6WUDWHJLF5LVN(PHUJHQF\5HVSRQVH %XVLQHVV&RQWLQXLW\7KUHDWV 1HZ4WU
5HI

5LVN

2ZQHU

,QKHUHQW5LVN

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU-XQ

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU6HS

5HVLGXDO5LVN
4WU'HF

'LUHFWLRQRI
7UDYHO

0LWLJDWLQJ$FWLRQV
7KHDJUHHGEXVLQHVVFRQWLQXLW\PDQDJHPHQW %&0
SURJUDPPHZKLFKUXQVWKURXJKWRVXPPHULV
SURJUHVVLQJDQGLVRQWUDFN0HPEHUVKLSRIWKH
FRUSRUDWH%&0$VVXUDQFH%RDUG %&0$% KDVEHHQ
ILQDOLVHGDQGZRUNWRFRPSLOHDFFXUDWHPDQDJHPHQW
LQIRUPDWLRQ 0, IRUFRQVLGHUDWLRQE\%&0$%LVQHDU
FRPSOHWLRQ$VLWVWDQGVWKH0,VKRZVWKDWRQO\
DSSUR[RIH[LVWLQJEXVLQHVVFRQWLQXLW\SODQVDUH
XSWRGDWHZLWKDSSUR[RIDOO*&&*)56
VHUYLFHVDQGIXQFWLRQVDGPLWWLQJWKDWWKH\GRQRW
KDYHDQ\IRUPRI%&3LQSODFH7KHVHILJXUHVFRQILUP
WKHFXUUHQWULVNLPSDFWDVVHVVPHQW

Page 67

65

,QOLQHZLWKEHVWSUDFWLFHUREXVWDQGDFFXUDWH
EXVLQHVVLPSDFWDQDO\VHV %,$V QHHGWREH
FRQGXFWHGEHIRUH%&3VDUHGHYHORSHGXSGDWHG$
QHZ%,$SURFHVVKDVWKHUHIRUHEHHQGHYHORSHGDQG
WKLVKDVEHHQVXFFHVVIXOO\WULDOHGZLWK*)56/RJLVWLFV
5HVRXUFHVDIXUWKHUWULDOZLWKWKH*&&$UFKLYHV
6HUYLFHLVVFKHGXOHGIRU-DQXDU\%,$VZLOOWKHQ
EHUROOHGRXWDFURVV*&&*)56XVLQJDQH[LVWLQJ
XQGHUVWDQGLQJRISULRULW\FULWLFDOLW\WRLQIRUPZKLFK
%,$VQHHGWREHDGGUHVVHGILUVW
'XHWRLQVXIILFLHQWEXVLQHVVFRQWLQXLW\PDQDJHPHQW
DUUDQJHPHQWVIDLOXUHRIWKH&RXQFLORUDNH\SDUWQHUWR
HIIHFWLYHO\GHOLYHUWKHLUVWDWXWRU\VHUYLFHVUHVXOWLQJLQ
FRPPXQLW\GLVUXSWLRQDQGIDLOXUHRIFRUSRUDWHREMHFWLYHV

%RZFRFN
:D\QH

+LJK

0RGHUDWH

0RGHUDWH

0RGHUDWH

$VWKHSURMHFWSURJUHVVHVPRUH%,$VDQG%&3VZLOO
EHXSGDWHGDFURVVWKHRUJDQLVDWLRQDQGSURFHVVHVZLOO
EHLPSOHPHQWHGWRHQVXUHWKDWSODQVDUHUHKHDUVHG
DQGWHVWHGUHVXOWLQJLQJUHDWHUFRQILGHQFHLQWKH
UREXVWQHVVRIHDFKVHUYLFH V%&0DUUDQJHPHQWVDQG
DUHGXFWLRQLQULVNLPSDFW7KHSODQQHGEXVLQHVV
FRQWLQXLW\DFWLYLWLHVPD\DOVRUHGXFHULVNOLNHOLKRRG
RYHUWLPHDOWKRXJKLWVKRXOGEHQRWHGWKDW&/7KDV
DJUHHGSHUWKHFRUSRUDWH%XVLQHVV&RQWLQXLW\3ROLF\
WKDWLWLVQHLWKHUIHDVLEOHQRUSUDFWLFDEOHWRHQWLUHO\
HOLPLQDWHORZIUHTXHQF\EXWKLJKLPSDFWGLVUXSWLRQ
ULVNVDWVRXUFH WKHDSSURSULDWHUHVSRQVHWRVXFK
ULVNVEHLQJIRU*&&WRSODQWRUHDFWHIIHFWLYHO\VKRXOG
WKHULVNVEHUHDOLVHGSUHSDULQJWRPLQLPLVHWKH
LPSDFWRIWKHLQFLGHQWDQGWRSURPSWO\UHFRYHUWKH
DIIHFWHGDFWLYLWLHVLHEXVLQHVVFRQWLQXLW\SODQQLQJ 
$GGLWLRQDOO\DUDQJHRIZRUNLVSURJUHVVLQJZLWKWKH
*&&6WUDWHJLF3URFXUHPHQW6HUYLFHWRHQVXUHWKDWD
VLJQLILFDQW%&0ULVNDULVLQJIURPDUHOLDQFHRQWKLUG
SDUWLHVVXSSOLHUVDQGGHOLYHU\SDUWQHUVLV
DGHTXDWHO\DGGUHVVHGWKURXJKRXWWKHSURFXUHPHQW
OLIHF\FOHIURPWKHEHJLQQLQJRIWKHSURFXUHPHQW
SURFHVV HJGHILQLQJUHTXLUHPHQWVDQGGUDIWLQJ
WHQGHUV WKURXJKVXSSOLHUVHOHFWLRQDQGWKH
DJUHHPHQWRIFRQWUDFWVRQJRLQJFRQWUDFW
UHODWLRQVKLSPDQDJHPHQWDFWLYLWLHVDQGXOWLPDWHO\
WKHRUGHUO\H[LWIURPUHODWLRQVKLSVZLWKNH\VXSSOLHUV

9

This page is intentionally left blank

